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$1,497k    $1,381k 

Annual Surplus

Effective

906 Active accreditations

1515 NZQC training days

1,075 Telarc certified organisations

Vital

Reducing cost to market  
for overseas trade

Facilitating domestic economic 
development

Managing health, safety  
and environmental risks

Assisting with trade agreements

Internationally 
Recognised

Accreditation authorities in 
104 countries recognise IANZ 
accreditation as equivalent to  
their own

Efficient

Accreditation fees increases  
less than inflation.

IANZ fees are amongst  
the lowest of all global 
accreditation bodies

Human Capital

Huge appreciation for our 
fantastic full-time staff, and 
our thousands of volunteer 
technical experts

Accreditation Council 
Highlights — FY2018
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Our Vision

To be a world-class provider  

of accreditation, certification  

and related services, providing  

value-added assurance of 

competence and compliance,  

in a financially sustainable manner.
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1.  The year in review

1.1  Delivering for New Zealand

The Accreditation Council is New Zealand’s 
accreditation authority, and owns the country’s  
largest certification business. Our core business 
is delivering competency assessment (IANZ) and 
compliance with standards / schemes (Telarc) that 
add value to business and provides the assurance 
that Government, the public at large and industry can 
rely upon.

This year IANZ has accredited 906 laboratories, 
inspection bodies, building consent authorities and 
radiology services, as well as specialist providers 
supporting these services. Telarc has provided 1,075 
certificates covering quality management systems, 
environmental management systems, health and 
safety management and food safety, as well as other 
specialist certificates.

The New Zealand Quality College, which provides 
specialist training for all the above activities delivered 
54 courses reflecting 1,515 attendance days, including 
two courses delivered overseas.

The services offered by the Council cover test 
reports (such as medical, food or drinking water), 
inspection of engineering plant (such as cranes 
and pressure equipment), building consents (code 
compliance), and certificates to give assurance of 
compliance with relevant standards. This assurance 
provides confidence to consumers, as well as  
underpinning exports.

During this year, IANZ has placed considerable effort 
into developing improved protocols to deal with 
counterfeit test reports. These reports undermine the 
effectiveness of the ILAC MRA and could allow sub-
standard or dangerous product into New Zealand. 
A particular concern has been imported steel, and 
IANZ has worked with MBIE and the steel industry to 
ensure steel complies with relevant standards. MBIE 
has carried out an internal review, of the conformance 

infrastructure. IANZ has worked with the review 
team, and looks forward to seeing the outcome when 
released.

IANZ continues to work closely with MBIE on new 
trade negotiations, specifically on TBT (Technical 
Barriers to Trade) issues. The increasing use by 
overseas regulators of accreditation as a regulatory 
tool is a new factor in these discussions.

1.2  Enhancing Safety

The Council remains committed to zero harm. This 
includes providing and promoting a safe and healthy 
workplace for all staff, contractors and visitors, to 
consulting with all involved and to providing the 
information, training and supervision needed to 
achieve this. IANZ and Telarc have been audited 
against AS/NZS 4801 Health & Safety standard and 
both comply with the standard.

1.3  Supporting Regulators

IANZ works with regulators to ensure accreditation 
solutions are suited to needs, providing the necessary 
rigour and assurance within the constraints of 
international standards.

The past year has seen IANZ working with Ministry 
for Primary Industries (MPI) ensuring dairy testing, 
meat testing and testing of other animal products 
meet new overseas market access requirements, 
as well as new standards for Manuka honey. IANZ 
continues to work closely with MBIE, MFAT and MOH 
on accreditation matters.

Telarc has further enhanced its business improvement 
activities, providing support to regulators and 
industry bodies across a variety of industries 
and assessment types. Telarc has promoted the  
New Zealand adoption of a new global health and 
safety standard ISO 45001.
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1.4  Financial Sustainability

The Council finished the year with a surplus of $1,497,248 ($1,164,413 budget, $1,380,959 prior year), including a 
contribution of $1,301,511 from its subsidiary, Telarc. 

The net assets of the Council now total $9,103,134 ($8,653,281 prior year) and investment is under way in a 
number of areas including staff development; targeted promotion activities; increased support for international 
trade facilities; as well as developing accreditation programmes in new sectors to support critical infrastructure. 
The Council acquired the remaining 25% of Telarc Limited during the year, making it a 100% owned subsidiary.

The reduced surplus for IANZ was largely due to un-budgeted one off costs, relating to the purchase of the 
remaining 25% shareholding of its subsidiary company. Telarc’s performance reflects increased revenue across 
all major programme areas.

Surplus Analysis
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1.5  Globally Recognised

IANZ is a signatory to the ILAC Mutual Recognition Arrangement (MRA), which means results from laboratories 
and inspection bodies accredited by IANZ are now accepted by 98 accreditation bodies in 104 countries. A full 
peer evaluation of IANZ takes place every four years, the next evaluation will be in 2019. 

The requirement by regulators for products to be tested (or inspected) by accredited laboratories means IANZ 
accreditation plays a major role in facilitating New Zealand’s export trade. 

Most exported products (including dairy, meat, shellfish, honey, wool, steel, aluminium, electrical and electronic 
products) are required to be tested in laboratories accredited by ILAC Arrangement signatories as a prerequisite 
to being accepted by their respective markets.

1.6  Tributes

The Council wishes to thank retiring Council member, Lindsey Lawton (30th June 2018), for her valuable 
contribution to the governance and initiatives of the Council and management. Her full term of office had  
been served.

The Council acknowledges both local and overseas volunteers, who give their time freely to serve on  
our professional advisory committees and as technical expert assessors to provide the essential peer review. 
This significant contribution to the effectiveness of IANZ accreditation domestically and internationally is  
much appreciated.

The Council also recognises the dedication and intellectual support from its management and staff, who all play a 
part in ensuring New Zealand commerce and industry perform to international quality and technical management 
standards and practices, and that New Zealand’s voice is heard in international conformity assessment forums.

1.7  The Year Ahead

Our regular surveys of clients all suggest that IANZ should increase its marketing effort, and particularly promote 
the value and impact of accreditation. This year, the Council will significantly increase its investment in marketing 
and communications.

IANZ is also looking at operational efficiencies that can be gained through the upgrade of the existing financial 
reporting systems.

We are pleased to submit this Annual Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Paul Connell    Dr Llewellyn Richards 
Chairman    Chief Executive
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2.  Governance and Structure 

2.1  Legislative Framework

The Accreditation Council is established under 
the Standards and Accreditation Act 2015, but is a 
continuation of the Testing Laboratory Registration 
Council, established under the Testing Laboratory 
Registration Act 1972. The Council is an Autonomous 
Crown Entity under the Crown Entities Act 2004. 
Telarc is a Crown subsidiary under the Act.

The Council’s functions as set out in the Standards and 
Accreditation Act are:

 — to promote the development and maintenance 
of good practice in conformity assessment; and

 — to establish and maintain accreditation schemes 
for conformity assessment bodies engaged in 
testing and inspection activities; and

 — to develop and maintain international recognition 
and acceptance of the Council’s accreditation 
scheme; and

 — to maintain appropriate international 
relationships consistent with the Council’s 
functions under this section; and

 — to act as New Zealand’s good laboratory 
practice compliance monitoring authority; and

 — if the Council chooses, to provide certification 
services; and

 — to perform any other functions that the Minister 
directs the Council to perform in accordance 
with section 112 of the Crown Entities Act 2004.

The Council’s Organisational structure can be found 
in Appendix 2.

The Council has traded under the name IANZ 
(International Accreditation New Zealand) since 
1 July 1997. On this date, the Council created Telarc 
Limited as a separate legal entity wholly owned by 
the Council. On 1 April 2007, SAI Global merged 
their New Zealand certification business with Telarc 
Limited, forming Telarc SAI Limited. SAI Global held 

The Accreditation Council is an Autonomous Crown Entity under the Crown Entities Act 2004. 

The Members are appointed by the Minister of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (the responsible Minister)  
in accordance with the Standards and Accreditation Act 2015. The Council is monitored by MBIE.

 

 
Organisational responsibility is delegated to the Chief Executive using a formal delegations framework.  
The Council comprises seven independent non-executive members. Their profiles and disclosures of interest  
are published on page 14.

MINISTER OF 
COMMERCE AND 

CONSUMER AFFAIRS
ACCREDITATION 

COUNCIL

APPOINTS EMPLOYS EMPLOYS

IANZ CEO IANZ STAFF
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a 25% ownership interest in the merged company, 
until 30 August 2017 when the Council purchased 
SAI Global’s 25% interest, returning Telarc Limited 
to a 100% owned subsidiary. Telarc Limited has its 
own Board of Directors, and operates independently  
from IANZ.

The Council is required under the Crown Entities Act 
2004 to have regard to Government policy as directed 
by the responsible Minister, the Minister of Commerce 
and Consumer Affairs. The collective duties of the 
Accreditation Council under the Crown Entities 
Act include ensuring IANZ acts consistently with its 
objectives, functions, Statement of Intent and Annual 
Statement of Performance Expectation; performs it 
functions efficiently, effectively and consistently; and 
operates in a financially responsible manner.

Council members also have individual duties to: comply 
with the Act (including with respect to disclosure of 
interests); act with honesty and integrity; act in good 
faith and not at the expense of the Council’s interests; 
and act with reasonable care, diligence and skill.

The Council is entirely funded by client fees and 
receives no Crown funding.

2.2  Goals of the Council

The goals of both IANZ and Telarc are set as part of the 
process of developing the Statement of Intent (SOI), 
and are articulated in the Statement of Performance 
Expectations (SPE), after consultation with the MBIE 
and as approved by the Council and Telarc Board. 
The process follows receipt of the Minister’s letter of 
expectation, which includes general priorities of the 
Government, and specific priorities for the Council. 
Both the SOI and the SPE are publicly available on the 
IANZ website. www.ianz.govt.nz.

Of special importance are the Professional Advisory 
Committees (PACs) which provide technical guidance 
and support in each field of activity undertaken 
by IANZ. This includes reviewing and making 
recommendations on every new accreditation. The 
Chairs of the PACs form the Accreditation Advisory 
Committee (AAC) which formally advises Council 
on any technical issues. The Chair of the AAC also 
makes a formal recommendation to the CEO to  
grant accreditation.

The Council’s business is linked directly to ensuring the 
health and safety of products and services provided in 
New Zealand, and providing assurance of competence 
and compliance with standards. These functions 
are increasingly a requirement for doing business, 
and play a major role in facilitating New Zealand’s  
export activities.

2.3  Performance Reporting and 
Consultation

The financial and organisational performance of the 
Council is reported annually to Parliament.

An annual Letter of Expectations from the Minister 
of Commerce and Consumer Affairs to the Council 
identifies relationship expectations and reporting 
requirements. It also acknowledges the required 
independence of the Council in carrying out its 
accreditation and certification functions. Through a 
comprehensive review process, the Council ensures 
the content of the SOI complies with the Crown 
Entities Act 2004 (CEA) section 141. Furthermore, the 
Council also reports all outcomes included in this SOI 
as part of its requirements under the CEA.

The Council is the primary monitor of organisational 
performance and meets bi-monthly in this regard. 

MBIE receives a quarterly analysis and performance 
overview. Comment on other significant issues is 
included where necessary. 

The Council also regularly communicates on all on-
going operations with its monitor, MBIE.

Both the CEO and Chairman continue to have regular 
meetings with MBIE officials as well as briefing 
discussions as needed. The Chair meets periodically 
with the Minister of Commerce.

The Council would consult the Minister of Commerce 
and Consumer Affairs before making any significant 
change to its business units or structure.

The Council also undertakes an annual review of its 
own performance. 
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2.4  External Audit

The Auditor-General is the auditor of the Council’s 
financial statements and has appointed Audit New 
Zealand to undertake the external audit work.

Every four years IANZ receives a full evaluation 
from its Asia Pacific Laboratory Accreditation 
Cooperation (APLAC MRA) partners. This evaluation 
is a requirement of continuing membership of the 
ILAC MRA. The last evaluation was completed in  
March 2015.

2.5  Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee helps the Council fulfil 
its financial reporting responsibilities and provides 
assurance regarding compliance with internal 
controls, policies and procedures. Its responsibilities 
are established in a charter which is reviewed annually. 
The Committee meets with the external auditors 
(both with and without management present). It has 
no delegated authority but makes recommendations 
to the Council. 

2.6  Health and Safety Committee

Ensuring the health and safety of all staff and 
contractors continues to be a fundamental focus 
for the Council. During the year, the Council 
has established a comprehensive Health and 
Safety Management System, compliant with the  
new Health and Safety at Work Act (2015) and all 
applicable regulations. A full AS/NZS 4801 compliance 
audit was undertaken during the year, to ensure all 
policies meet international best practice.

Representation from all levels of staff and management 
comprise the Health and Safety Committee, which 
meets on a bi-monthly basis.

Council members regularly participate in assessments 
to gain their own understanding of good practice 
when staff are at clients’ premises.

Telarc has its own Health and Safety Management 
system and has also been assessed against AS/NZ 
4801.
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3.  Council Members’ Profiles

Paul is an independent director 
with experience as a Chartered 
Accountant, consultant, director 
and CEO. He has been a 
director of a public companies, 
public entities and a number of 
private companies for 18 years. 
He is presently chair of the 
Accreditation Council, director of 
Unison Networks Ltd, Unison Fibre 
Ltd, ETEL Ltd, Hall’s Refrigerated 
Transport Ltd and Telarc Ltd. He is 
founding independent chairman 
of the Hamilton City Council Audit 
and Risk Committee and Chair 
of Bobux International Limited. 
He is also a facilitator for the 
Institute of Directors continuing  
education programme. 

Paul Connell (CA CFInstD) 
Chairman 

John Boshier  
FIPENZ, BE (Hons), ME, MBA

Lindsey Lawton  
(FCA, MEd, BA Hons) 
Chair Audit and Risk Committee

(Resigned effective 1 July, 2018) 

Lindsey Lawton is a Chartered 
Accountant with over 20 years’ 
experience in management 
consulting. In addition to her 
consulting experience Lindsey 
has also held several leadership 
positions, including Chief 
Executive, Chief Financial Officer 
and Chief Operating Officer role’s, 
in the health and ICT sectors. 
Lindsey’s previous governance 
roles have been in healthcare and 
not-for-profit organisations. 

John Boshier is a company 
director based in Wellington. He 
is a Member of the Standards 
Approval Board. In 2016 he was 
appointed to the board of Electra 
Ltd, the lines company serving 
the Horowhenua region and 
its subsidiary companies. John 
is a Director of the Harkness 
Fellowships Trust Board, and 
a Trustee of the Engineering 
Foundation of Engineers New 
Zealand (IPENZ). Previously he 
was Executive Director of the 
National Generators Forum, 
the representative body for 
Australia’s electricity generators. 
For five years he was Chief 
Executive of Engineers Australia, 
the professional institution for all 
engineers and a General Manager 
of the Electricity Corporation of 
New Zealand. 
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Carolyn Harkess  
(MBA, DipM)

Carolyn Harkess has over 20 
years’ senior executive experience 
having held chief executive 
and senior management roles 
in Manufacturing and Retail 
industries in New Zealand and 
Internationally. She brings to the 
Board experience in understanding 
and managing international 
markets, assisting organisations in 
their strategic development and 
driving performance in bottom 
line results. She brings governance 
experience across a range of 
sectors including government, 
sporting and not for profit. She 
is a Member of the Institute of 
Directors in New Zealand. 

Dr Graeme Benny 
(BSBioMicr, MSBio (Hon), 
PhDClinBio)

Dr Benny has a Bachelor of 
Science in biochemistry and 
microbiology, and a Master of 
Science (Hon) in biochemistry, 
from Massey University together 
with a PhD in clinical biochemistry 
from Auckland University. 

Graeme’s career as a senior 
executive and Chief Executive 
has spanned public and private 
sector organisations in the human 
and animal pharmaceuticals 
and therapeutics, human 
biotech, Counties Manukau 
and Auckland District Health 
Board, the New Zealand Blood 
Service and the New Zealand  
Defence Force.

He was Director/CE of Health 
Workforce New Zealand and is 
currently Chair and Executive 
Director of Leecare Solutions 
Pty (an Australian-based health 
IT development company), 

Chair of Ako Aotearoa, Chair  
of Auramer Bio (a biotechnology 
development company), and 
Chair of the WellFed Charitable 
Trust. 
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Richard Collin 
(Dip Hort, EDPPP (Monash), 
NZCminstD, NZSTM)

Richard Collin has a background in 
Primary industry and agribusiness. 
He is a Chartered member of 
NZ Institute of Directors Nelson 
Marlborough branch board 
member. Richard is a member 
of the Nelson Tasman Chamber 
of Commerce, board member 
and vice president, NZ Trustees 
association board member 
and senior member, Brook 
Waimarama Sanctuary trustee 
and several advisory boards 
relating to health and NZ primary 
industry. Richard has been a past 
board member of PrimaryITO, 
HorticultureNZ, New Zealand 
Fruitgrowers Federation, Hawkes 
Bay Fruitgrowers association and 
Pipfruit NZ Inc. He has also been 
a trustee for charities and trusts 
involved in primary industry, the 
arts, museums, schools, youth 
development, and seasonal labour 
coordination and for conservation. 

Peter Steel  
(FIPENZ, CPEng, BE, BCA)

Peter Steel is a qualified Civil 
Engineer and Economist and 
has had a career working as a 
Consulting Engineer, General 
Manager and Managing Director 
for organisations involved in a wide 
range of civil and infrastructure 
projects, in New Zealand and 
internationally. 

Peter is a former President of the 
Wellington Regional Chamber 
of Commerce and has been 
Councillor and Deputy Chair 
of Weltec Polytechnic as well 
as Councillor for Weltec and 
Whitireia’s combined Council. 
Other directorships are for Hutt 
City Council’s Seaview Marina 
and Business Central associated 
companies. 
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Paul Connell (CA CFInstD)

Paul is an independent director 
with experience as a Chartered 
Accountant, consultant, director 
and CEO. He has been a director 
of a number of public companies, 
public entities and a number of 
private companies for 18 years. 
He is presently chair of the 
Accreditation Council, director of 
Unison Networks Ltd, Unison Fibre 
Ltd, ETEL Ltd, Hall’s Refrigerated 
Transport Ltd and Telarc Ltd. He is 
founding independent chairman 
of the Hamilton City Council audit 
and risk committee and Chair of 
Bobux International Limited. 

4.  Telarc Limited Directors’ Profiles

David has an Honours Degree 
in Engineering from Bristol 
University, and after pursuing a 
corporate career with BP and 
as an executive director with 
Winstone Ltd, he became an 
external director with a number 
of companies. He served as a 
director of New Zealand Rail Ltd, 
was foundation chairman of the 
CRI Industrial Research Ltd, has 
represented the Prime Minister’s 
Department on the boards of 
a number of Crown Entities, 
and was Managing Director of 
software company Smartmove 
NZ Ltd. He is currently chairman 
of Hall’s Group Ltd, Telarc Ltd, 
Pacific Aerials Ltd, SIMTICS Ltd 
and Madill and Smeed Ltd. 

David Bone (BEng Hons) 
Chairman 

Vikki Brannagan  
(MinstD B.A. (Japanese)  
B.Com (Bus))

Vikki is an experienced CEO 
and professional director, with 
governance and leadership 
experience across a wide variety 
of industries in the commercial, 
public and not-for-profit sectors. 
She holds independent board 
positions with Cafe Brands Ltd 
(franchisor of the Columbus 
Coffee chain); the Apprenticeship 
Training Trust (a major employer 
in the PGDR & Electrical sectors); 
and on the Council of the Auckland 
District Law Society.
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5.  Management Profiles

Dr Richards has been Chief 
Executive of the Council since 1 
December 1996. He is also the 
chair of the APLAC)MRA Council 
and serves on the APLAC Board 
of Management. He has also 
served on the Board of ILAC, 
and chaired the ILAC’s Financial 
Audit Committee for six years. 
He has previously served as a 
Director of Industrial Research 
Ltd (predecessor to Callaghan 
Innovation). Dr Richards has an 
MSc (Hons) in Physics, and a PhD 
in Engineering.

Llewellyn Richards 
(MSc (Hons), PhD) 
Chief Executive Officer 

Philip Barnes (MSc FIMLS) 
General Manager 
Accreditation Services 

Phil Barnes re-joined IANZ in 
November 2014 as General 
Manager of Accreditation 
Services, having been a member 
of the executive leadership team at 
Waitemata District Health Board 
for the previous 6 years. Originally 
from the UK, Phil migrated to 
New Zealand in 1999 and joined 
IANZ as Programme Manager 
for Medical Testing, Radiology  
and Pharmacy. 

In 2006 he joined Waitemata 
DHB as Laboratory Services 
Manager and in 2008 was 
appointed Director of Allied 
Health, Scientific and Technical 
Staffs and subsequently Group 
Manager – Hospital Operations. 
Trained in the UK as a Medical 
Laboratory Scientist, he is a Fellow 
of the UK Institute of Medical 
Laboratory Science and also holds 
a Master’s degree in Instrumental  
Chemical Analysis.

Fiona Paulin (NDA, CA)
Chief Financial Officer and 
Company Secretary

Originally from Wellington, Fiona 
began her career with Union 
Shipping Group and over the 
past 20 years she has held a 
number of senior roles across 
a diverse range of public and 
private industry sectors including 
Financial Services, Building, 
Pharmaceuticals, Manufacturing, 
Electrical and more recently 
the Education sector. She has 
extensive experience in both 
Finance and Operations areas. 
Fiona graduated from the 
Auckland University of Technology 
with a National Diploma in 
Accountancy, and became a 
member of the NZ Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in 1994.
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Greg Williams 
(BBS, PGDipSci, DipArts, PhD) 
New Zealand Quality College 
General Manager
After graduating from the 
University of Auckland, Dr Williams 
worked for 11 years as Technical 
and Quality Manager in a plastics 
manufacturing company before 
becoming the NZ Manager for 
the certification body SAI Global. 
During this time, he completed 
many management systems 
audits throughout NZ, Australia 
and Fiji, and also provided training 
in the fields of management 
systems auditing and international 
standards. Dr Williams has a BBS in 
Accounting/Finance, a PGDip Sci 
in Environmental Management, a 
DipArts in Economics and a PhD 
in Chemistry. 

Philip Cryer (BBS) 
Chief Executive Officer (Telarc)

Philip Cryer has worked in a wide 
variety of roles across a diverse 
range of industry sectors. Over 
the last 13 years he held a number 
of management roles with Spark 

N.Z. Philip managed teams with 
accountabilities for customer 
service, technology design and 
delivery through to business 
operations support. Prior to his 
time at Spark Philip worked in 
a variety of roles in Strategy 
development, Supply chain and 
logistics, Treasury, Accounting, 
International Business 
management, Marketing and 
Retailing. Philip has a degree 
from Massey University in  
Business Studies. 
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6.  Fatal Attraction

IANZ assessment reports, and indeed IANZ assessors, 
are at pains to state that: 

“Where some items relating to legal requirements 
such as health and safety may have been identified, 
this does not represent an exhaustive report on your 
compliance with such legal requirements. Auditing 
for compliance with legal requirements is outside of 
the scope of this assessment.”

If there was ever any margin of discretion in this 
position, it has been recalibrated as a result of the 
Health and Safety at Work Act: 2015, which expects 
everybody, including IANZ assessors, to do their duty 
with regard to protecting the health and safety of 
New Zealanders. 

Whatever the words of the disclaimer, safety has  
always been an intrinsic component of all IANZ 
assessments, especially in accreditation programmes 
where safety requirements are enshrined in the 
accreditation standards themselves. 

New Zealand, through IANZ, was the first country in 
the world to adopt the international medical testing 
standard, ISO 15189, for its national accreditation 
programme and this standard has very clearly stated 
expectations around protecting the health and 
safety of laboratory staff. However, in any testing 
laboratory environment quality and safety are not  
separate concepts. 

In New Zealand we have adapted this standard for 
the medical imaging/radiology sector, where the 
inextricable connection between test result quality, 
service standards and staff/patient safety are clearly 
apparent. Post Hiroshima, the dangers of ionising 
radiation have been fully embedded in the public 
consciousness but there are insidious, more acute 
prospects of catastrophe lurking within your friendly 

radiology practice that aren’t to do with radiation at all, 
they are to do with the power of magnetism. One of 
the increasingly common modes of medical imaging 
is that of Magnetic Resonance Imaging or MRI. Image 
production involves subjecting a patient to a massive 
magnetic force field, big enough in fact to disturb the 
very atoms – the protons in water molecules – in our 
bodies. A typical MRI scanner uses a magnet with a 
‘power’ of up to 3-4 Tesla; one Tesla = 10,000 gauss 
and the earth’s magnetic field is about 0.5 gauss to 
give some context. Research magnets may go up to 
60 Tesla. MRI scanners have been described as:

“Incredibly, stupendously dangerous, insanely 
magnetic, potentially explosive, freezing cold death 
traps that save thousands of lives every year.”

The force of the magnet is such that the equipment 
has to be ‘zoned’ with stringent restrictions on entry 
to each zone and comprehensive personnel screening 
protocols for anyone accessing these restricted areas. 
Any unscreened individual approaching the magnet 
risks having keys ripped from their pockets and cell 
phones from their hands (even if they are teenagers). 
More dangerously, internal metal implants such as 
pacemakers, stents and aneurysm clips could be 
dislodged with possible fatal consequences and 
anyone with a history of working in metal-machining 
environment may have previously undetected 
metal fragments in their eyes, that could move 
sufficiently, to cause blindness. There are a number 
of cases of people unwittingly approaching the 
scanner with oxygen cylinders which then become 
projectiles of exponentially increasing velocity and 
impact any patient inside the scanning tunnel, with 
fatal consequences. There are also may cases of 
rescue service personnel such as firemen, whose 
equipment and protective gear has caused them to 
hurtle towards and become ‘stuck’ on the magnet. 
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Subsequently turning the magnet off is also a big 
deal as the operating magnet is cooled by liquid 
helium at a temperature of -269.1 degrees Celsius. 
When you turn it off the 1,700 or so litres of helium 
can boil with explosive, catastrophic force and can 
additionally create a hypothermia and asphyxiation 
hazard in adjacent areas. There have been many 
deaths worldwide from all of the hazards described 
above, so any standard or accreditation process 
that does not include MRI safety zoning, screening 
protocols, emergency procedures etc. as part of its 
quality and competence remit is not worth a non-
ferrous farthing. 

The sub-text to the IANZ disclaimer in assessment 
reports is that whilst we are not responsible for 
auditing your organisation for legal compliance with 
health and safety requirements, you are, and we are 
absolutely committed to helping you comply. 
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7.  Statement of Performance

The Accreditation Council is subject to a Ministerial direction regarding the New Zealand Business Number 
(NZBN). To date, the Council is 75% complete in its implementation process.

7.1  Accreditation

IANZ accreditation provides independent recognition of competence for a range of technical service providers 
(laboratories, inspection bodies, radiology practices, building consent authorities). This enables businesses, 
consumers and regulators to have confidence in test and inspection reports, and make decisions based on 
reliable results. IANZ provides this value-adding service in an effective and cost-efficient manner. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE1 

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Revenue 7,251,625 7,194,276 6,593,197

Less Cost (7,193,056) (7,986,243) (6,650,163)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 58,570 (791,967) (56,966)

1Refer to note 2 Net Revenue and Cost analysis
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Output 2018 Target 2018 Actual

1. Responsibly Manage the 
Government’s Finances 

1.  Maintain financial sustainability without 
recourse to the Crown (through 
adequate financial reserves to continue 
operating as a viable concern). 

a)  Consolidated reserves continue at 
levels sufficient to maintain more 
than 4 months operating costs and 
have surpassed targets set. 

2. Invest in three core areas:

a)  Staff – Extending training into new areas a)  5 new staff were recruited during the 
year. Training was held in core areas of 
accreditation, plus extended training 
was carried out in metrology and 
calibration; mechanical; and inspection.

b)  New programmes – particularly 
food safety inspection; and non-
traditional medical testing (e.g. point 
of care testing in pharmacies and 
diagnostic testing by physicians);

b)  Food safety inspection has been extended, 
and now covers 11 clients accredited; 
IANZ has collaborated with MPI in 
additional Food safety auditing activity 
on a contract basis at their request.

c)  Trade facilitation – using the global 
accreditation networks to reduce 
technical barriers to trade.

c)  IANZ is working with other national 
accreditation authorities overseas, to 
improve acceptance by regulators of the 
ILAC MRA, and its mutual recognition 
obligations. There are also options to make 
the assessment process more efficient, 
where overseas accreditation bodies 
undertake duplicate assessments of 
laboratories already accredited by IANZ. 
These options are under discussion with 
relevant overseas accreditation authorities.

3.  Benchmark fees against other 
professional service providers, and 
overseas accreditation bodies.

a)  IANZ regularly carries out benchmarking 
exercises with regard to fees. IANZ fees 
remain lower than similar accreditation 
bodies. (NATA – AUD $268/hr incl. GST).

Goals:

—  Achieve a surplus of $1.2 million.

—  Achieve $7 million consolidated 
cash reserves.

— Surplus of $1.49 million achieved.

—  Cash reserves did not meet the target 
goal of $7 million in part due to the 
purchase of the remaining 25% of 
Telarc Limited (subsidiary company).

2. Building a more 
productive economy

1.  Ensure IANZ delivery of Accreditation provides 
an efficient, and robust solution for regulators, 
and a global business solution for industry 
users (measured by surveyed feedback from 
industry users, and the number of programmes 
where regulators use accreditation). 

a)  IANZ carries out quarterly surveys of a 
random selection of clients. Results this 
year have been consistently positive. IANZ 
has also actively engaged with regulators 
who specify accreditation, to ensure IANZ 
recognition of competence provides the 
assurance they need. A particular focus 
this year has included regulators in MBIE, 
MPI and MOH (drinking water assessors).

2.  Engage regularly with regulators (MBIE, MOH, 
MPI) to provide accreditation to support 
domestic and international commerce.

a)  Senior staff continuously working with 
MBIE (Building and Trading Standards);

b)  MOH (drinking water, medical testing, 
medical imaging, office of radiation safety);

c)  MPI (Recognised Laboratory Programme; 
domestic food safety inspection) on an 
ongoing basis throughout the year.
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Output 2018 Target 2018 Actual

3.  Work with the Ministry for Primary Industries 
(MPI) and the agricultural sector to ensure 
dairy testing, meat testing and testing 
of other animal products meets new 
Overseas Market Access Requirements 
(thus facilitating growth in exports).

a)  The following assessments for the 
new MPI Recognised Laboratory 
Programme (RLP) have occurred:

—  74 new accreditations granted

—  3 in application phase

4.  Facilitate NZ exports through reducing/
removing technical barriers to trade through 
global acceptance of IANZ accreditation 
by maintaining signatory status to the ILAC 
Mutual Recognition Arrangement (MRA).

a)  IANZ continues to be a full MRA signatory 
to both the APLAC (Asia Pacific 
Laboratory Accreditation Corporation) 
and ILAC recognition arrangements. IANZ 
will next be evaluated in March 2019.

5.  Maintain and enhance our global links 
through the Asia Pacific Laboratory 
Accreditation Cooperation (APLAC) AND 
ILAC, measured by our representation 
on key international committees.

a)  IANZ staff continue to be directly involved 
in the core activities of both APLAC and 
ILAC. The IANZ CEO is Chair of the APLAC 
MRA Council, and is a member of the Board 
of Management. Senior IANZ staff are also 
involved in the technical committees.

b)  At the ILAC level, IANZ participates 
in the Arrangement Council; the 
Arrangement Management Committee, 
the Accreditation Policy Committee; 
and the Working Group, setting the 
requirements for the Arrangement. 
Senior staff are also represented on the 
inspection and technical committees.

c)  The CEO is also the IANZ delegate 
to the APLAC and ILAC General 
Assembly meetings.

Goal:

—  Achieve and maintain recognition 
by other national accreditation 
authorities in over 100 countries. 

—  Continued ILAC MRA relationships. 
Currently recognised in 101 economies.

3. Delivering better public 
services within tight 
fiscal constraints

1. Increase Accreditations to 900. a) Accreditations increased to 906.

2. Increase certifications to 1,100. a)  1075 certified organisations were 
listed on the JAZ-ANZ register for 
the year ended 30 June 2018.

3.  Identify key outcomes from 2017 
market research, to improve service 
delivery and taking action to increase 
the value of both accreditation and 
certification services by 30 June 2018.

a)  The key output from the 2017 market 
research study was a request for more 
promotion of the value and impact of 
accreditation. IANZ has continued its 
(print) advertising programme. IANZ 
has also had significant publicity with 
regard to specific accreditation issues.

4.  Provide new accreditation 
assessments on request.

a)  Active Accreditations increased to 
906 this year (last year 891).

5.  Further investment in IT infrastructure 
to enhance business processes.

a)  One up invoicing project was implemented 
in June. Various computer hardware was 
upgraded to support business processes.
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Output 2018 Target 2018 Actual

6.  Work with MBIE regarding implementation of 
the New Zealand Business Number (NZBN).

a)  CRM has the capability to input a business 
number, the system will be updated 
in the first quarter of F2019. All NZBN 
numbers collected will be updated. 
Project is currently 75% complete.

Monitor organisational performance in 
line with the Council’s Strategic Plan.

Organisational performance is reviewed 
at every Council meeting.

Goals:

—  Reach 900 Accreditations.

—  Action plan from 2017 market research.

—  Improved invoicing processes.

—  Achieved 906 Accreditations for the year.

—  Action plan developed during the year.

—  One up invoicing project 
implemented in June.

4. Rebuilding Christchurch, 
Kaikoura/ Wellington

IANZ will continue to assess the 
Christchurch City Council Building 
Consent Authority (BCA) on an ongoing 
basis against statutory requirements. 

Routine re-assessment completed 
in August 2017. 

Goal:

—  IANZ will undertake a follow up assessment 
of Christchurch City Council BCA in 
2017; a follow up assessment of Kaikoura 
District Council BCA in 2017 and work 
with MBIE to increase the effectiveness 
of the BCA accreditation programme.

—  Christchurch City Council had a routine 
re-assessment completed in August 2017. 
A follow up assessment of Kaikoura District 
Council was carried out in March 2018. 
Accreditation expected to be maintained.

7.1.1  PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The Council has carried out accreditation assessments 
in accordance with its schedules for the current year, 
including new assessments across a number of 
programmes. IANZ also receives regular requests 
for accreditation scope extension assessments 
from existing clients. IANZ adds value for clients by 
sharing best practice and providing recognition of 
their services which is a necessary prerequisite to 
grow their business into new areas, either to meet 
regulatory requirements or market needs.

WORKPLACE DRUG TESTING

Strong interest in workplace drug testing (WDT) 
accreditation continues, with regular enquiries 
requesting advisory visits. Currently, WDT 
accreditations are split between the Medical Testing 
and Chemical Testing programmes under ISO/
IEC 17025 or ISO 15189. This is an unnecessary 
complication for potential clients, many of whom are 

very small scale operators with limited knowledge 
and experience in the arcane arena of ISO technical 
and quality management standards. The two 
programmes are now working together to develop a 
specific criteria document combining relevant parts 
of each primary standard and explaining to clients 
how they need to be applied. A draft of the combined 
standard and specific criteria has been developed for 
presentation to the relevant Professional Advisory 
Committees and should be ready for implementation 
in late 2018/2019. 

ACCREDITATION OF PET-CT

Pacific Radiology and Mercy Radiology have 
both achieved accreditation for PET-CT and were 
joined by Hamilton Radiology in October 2017 and 
Ascot Radiology in May 2018. Difficulties are still 
encountered in finding suitable technical experts 
from the very small and highly specialised pool. 
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7.2  Certification

Telarc certification provides an independent assurance of compliance that management system standards have 
been met. In addition new income streams have been created through industry and regulatory bodies wanting to 
ensure that their internal or external workers are doing what has been agreed (via internal or contractual SOP’s) 
they should be doing. Certificates offered include quality management; environmental management; health and 
safety management as well as other services including Herd testing, food safety and Adventure tourism safety. 
In the other revenue space Telarc has supported a variety of industry and regulatory bodies to ensure that their 
members are complying against agreed standards / schemes. 

These include Dairy NZ (Sustainable Dairy Water Accord), NZTA 3rd party audits, Housing Corporation – 
competency trial and Zespri multi-faceted sub-contractor assessment pilot. Telarc is additionally being asked to 
carry out one off Health & Safety construction site audits for large civil and roading clients prior to work being 
undertaken. These clients are wanting to make sure that any H&S potential risks are being identified very early on 
in a sites development and captured on risk registers for active management.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE2 

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Revenue 8,682,841 8,116,684 8,356,102

Less Cost (7,510,785) (7,247,753) (7,164,494)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 1,172,056 868,931 1,191,607

2Refer to note 2 Net Revenue and Cost analysis

AUCKLAND DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD

Issues with accommodation for Anatomical 
Pathology in the Auckland regional laboratories are 
now largely resolved, though Counties Manukau DHB 
is still in the building/remediation phase following an 
approved business case for the necessary funding. 
The accreditation of Northland DHBs blood bank 
facility at Whangarei Hospital remains in suspension 
following a special assessment in late 2017. Issues 
around staffing levels and competence are being 
gradually addressed and a reassessment has been 
requested before the end of 2018.

DISTRICT HEALTH BOARD RADIOLOGY 
SERVICES’ ACCREDITATION

IANZ continues to work with the largest unaccredited 
DHB Radiology Service but progress has been 
disappointingly slow. Southern DHB radiology 
services at Dunedin Hospital were suspended earlier 
this year for staffing, equipment and workload issues 
similar to those at the Southland Hospital site which 
was suspended in 2015. 

BCA REVIEW 

The number of BCAs of concern has continued to 
reduce reflecting the significant on-going quality 
and performance gains of the sector. IANZ and MBIE 
have revised the BCA accreditation process. The new 
guidelines and fee regime came into effect on 1 July 
2017 and involves a closer partnership between IANZ 
and MBIE. The radically revised assessment approach 
and report format was initially challenging but is now 
working well.

MORTUARY AND FORENSIC SERVICES 
ACCREDITATION BCA REVIEW

IANZ, in collaboration with the New Zealand Society 
of Pathologists and the Ministry of Justice has 
developed specific criteria for mortuary facilities i.e. 
Level, 1 (high risk and coronial cases), Level 2 (normal 
risk, coronial cases), and Level 3 (body storage). The 
RFP for potential service providers has recently been 
completed with 4 providers identified nationally. 
Some new accreditation activity is expected using 
the specific criteria noted above, but the exact 
accreditation regime is yet to be determined.
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Output 2018 Target 2018 Actual

1.  Building a more competitive 
and productive economy 

1.  Telarc’s growth strategy clearly focusses 
on its quality, public health and safety, 
food safety, environmental sustainability 
opportunities, and through the expansion 
of its electronic auditing tool into assessing 
or auditing in businesses or industries.

a)  Ensure Telarc delivery of Certification 
provides an efficient, but robust 
solution for regulators, and a global 
and domestic business solution for 
a wide variety of industry users.

a)  F’2018 focused on the transition to the 
2015 version of the 9001 and 14001 
standards. This saw a consolidation by 
some organisations of their certificate 
scopes. Additionally, organisations with 
mixed commitment to certification have 
found it difficult to achieve the new 
standard. Both of these activities led to 
increased levels of withdrawals. This has 
been offset by increased demand from 
Civil and Asbestos operators, nationwide, 
as new regulations and increased 
compliance requirements kick in. 

b)   ISO45001, the first global H&S standard, 
was launched in March 2018. Initial demand 
has been very encouraging. Telarc will 
have all of its required approvals in place 
to undertake audits by September 2018.

c)   Telarc has completed a number of non-
accredited audit schemes in F’2018:

•  Sustainable Dairy Water Accord (SDWA)

•  NZTA Agency audit 

•  QSafe / Qbase

•  Motor rewind

•  Zespri ethical QHS&E audit pilot

•  Housing NZ competency assessments

d)   Telarc has approvals in the 
following standards;

• ISO 9001:2015

• ISO 14001:2015

•  ISO22003:2013 (Categories 
C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, K) 

• ISO7901:2008

• ISO22000:2005

• AS/NZS 4801:2001

• OHSAS 18001:2007

• ISO45001

• JAZ-ANZ Procedure parts 1 and 2

• NZS 8100:2015

• IAF MD1:2007

• IAF MD2:2007

• IAF MD4:2008

• IAF MD 5:2015

• IAF MD11:2013

• ISO 17021-3:2013

• ISO 17021-2:2012

• ISO 17021-1:2015

• FSSC22000 – Category C and D

• Adventure Activities

•  MPI approved Food Evaluation 
& Verification body under 
the Food Act 2014

•  Recognised Wine verifier 
under the Wine Act 2003.
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Output 2018 Target 2018 Actual

2.   Facilitate NZ exports through reducing/
removing technical barriers to trade 
through global acceptance of Telarc 
certification, by maintaining accreditation 
by an IAF MLA signatory. 

a)  Telarc supports businesses of all sizes 
across New Zealand who export Food 
and Wine as well as a wide variety of 
manufactured goods and services.

b)  Standards audited range from International 
Food safety standards (FSSC22000, 
BRC, ISO22000, MPI (FCP) through to 
management system standards (ISO9001, 
14001 and the newly launched 45001.) 

c)  During F’2018 Telarc sponsored 
the adoption of ISO45001 as an 
NZ Standard. The 45001 adoption 
committee, established as part of this 
exercise, have subsequently made the 
determination that the 45001 should be 
adopted as a joint AS/NZS standard. 

d)   Telarc completed a pilot for Zespri 
to assess a select group of providers 
to the kiwifruit industry across H&S, 
environmental, quality and ethical practices. 

e)  The Sustainable Dairy Water Accord 
(SDWA) has completed its 4th year 
of being undertaken. This audit is 
undertaken on behalf of the majority 
of the Dairy industry to evaluate 
Waterways and Effluent management 
performance across strict criteria.

3.   Maintain JAS-ANZ accreditation across 
its management system portfolio.

a)  Maintained JAS-ANZ accreditation across 
the management system portfolio.

2.  Delivering better public 
services within tight 
fiscal constraints

1.  Further investment has been approved 
to enhance IT infrastructure and improve 
business processes (especially reporting).

a)  Telarc continues to drive in 
excess of 90% of its new business 
opportunity through its website.

b)   Web page algorithms and active 
management of them are imperative in 
getting Telarc in front of any Food safety or 
Management system audit related search. 

2.  Telarc will regularly survey its clients to 
ensure service delivery is well targeted, 
and look to continue to better understand 
and improve the value of certification 
services for all of its customer base.

a)  This exercise has been undertaken each 
month and has provided Telarc with 
real time feedback on its performance 
and opportunities for improvement. 

b)  The feedback to date has been positive 
or ambivalent, but there has been some 
opportunities for improvement identified 
with a small number of clients.

c)  Carrying out this exercise soon after 
the audit has been completed gives 
us a current perspective on how the 
complete Telarc experience played out.

3.  Leverage technology efficiencies as 
much as possible when evaluating and 
or developing new programmes.

a)  Telarc continues to leverage technology 
efficiencies and will be rolling out updates 
ready for additional pilots in early F2019.
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Output 2018 Target 2018 Actual

4.  Telarc’s growth strategy clearly focuses 
on its quality, public health and safety, 
food safety, environmental sustainability 
opportunities, and through the expansion 
of its electronic auditing tool into assessing 
or auditing in businesses or industries.

a)  Telarc has continued to develop its 
electronic auditing tool to support 
standards such as Q-Safe and ISO 22000.

Goal:

—  Deliver 1,100 Certification organisations 
on the JAS-ANZ register. 

—  Achieve 400 Certified food 
safety certificates.

—  58% market share of certified 
management systems in New Zealand.

1. Achieved 1,075. 

2.  Achieved 461 Certified food 
safety certificates.

3. Achieved 56%.

3.  Rebuilding Christchurch, 
Kaikoura/Wellington

1.  Telarc will provide locally based 
certification services to support 
businesses rebuilding infrastructure. 

a)  Telarc has relocated its offices into the 
Justice precinct, located in St Aspah Street.

b)  Telarc has increased its Christchurch based 
employees by 2. Lifting total FTE to 8.

Goal:

—  Telarc will provide locally based 
certification services to support 
businesses rebuilding Christchurch.

—  Total certificates on the JAS-ANZ 
register for Christchurch based 
businesses, June 2018 = 143.
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7.2.1  PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW

Telarc had another good year with improvements in 
revenue underpinning a stable profit year. 

Operating surplus was flat year on year $1.301m in 
F’18 v’s $1.292m in F’17. The dividend paid in F’18, to 
the Accreditation Council, was increased to $700k 
from $600k in F’17.

Revenue grew by 3.4% to $8.976m. 

 — Environment portfolio grew 1.5%

 — Quality portfolio grew 9.7%

 — Health & Safety portfolio grew 17.8%

 — Food portfolio grew 20.6%

 — Other revenue portfolio declined by 1/3rd as the 
EWRB competency work was not renewed. 

The growth across the board in Telarc‘s core lines of 
business was very encouraging. This is increasingly 
driving Telarc towards it strategic goal of becoming 
a more broadly sustainable business and reducing 
its reliance on the Quality portfolio. In F’2014 Quality 
made up for 60% of Telarc’s revenue. In F’2018 that 
has reduced to 42%. Telarc continues to push its other 
business streams to continue to manage its reliance 
on Quality to a sustainable level with the F’19 budget 
predicting a reduction in the Quality portfolio to circa 
40% of total revenue.

Telarc continues to develop a digital audit tool capable 
of supporting the variety of audits it undertakes. Good 
progress has been made in F’18 in the development 
of a tool able to support management system audits. 
It is envisaged that all audits in the food wine and 
management system areas will be conducted on a 
digital interface by the end of F’2019.

Telarc increased its people levels by 5 during the year 
with 4 new auditors employed full time and 1 new 
support person added to the team. 

Telarc continues to rely on its sub-contractors with 
over 1,000 audit days completed by these key service 
providers.

Telarc has spent the year investing in improving its 
overall Technical (food and management systems) 
performance. This has been driven predominantly by 
the requirements of both Accreditation Bodies and 
Regulators who are increasingly wanting improved 
consistency, competency of certification bodies / 
auditors supporting their requirements. 

A key strategic imperative which has underpinned 
Telarc’s success in the NZ market for 40+ years, 
has been its technical competence and its integrity. 
To maintain and enhance this requires continual 
improvement activity. To this end the investment 
in Telarc’s technical performance is a key driver in 
it enhancing its continually growing reputation for 
integrity and impartiality. 

During the course of the year a number of key H&S 
activities were undertaken to improve the well-being 
of all Telarc people. With increased data to draw on 
regarding incidents, Telarc has been able to identify 
its critical risk areas for H&S. To underpin the Telarc 
H&S Committee (supported by the Board) Telarc 
has developed an active risk prioritisation and 
minimisation / mitigation approach towards looking 
after its people. Telarc is audited by a third party 
against internationally recognised Quality and H&S 
standards. In F’2019 the H&S audit will be based on 
the newly introduced ISO45001 standard. 

Telarc continues to look for opportunities to grow its 
business, particularly outside the traditional core area 
of Quality.
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7.3 Training

NZQC provides training in both laboratory quality systems and management systems certification activity. 
Training courses are aimed at auditor level and client improvement. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE3

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Revenue

IANZ 601,773 734,260 746,760

Telarc 288,999 252,416 310,561

Total Revenue 890,772 986,676 1,057,321

Cost

IANZ (687,526) (108,222) (778,114)

Telarc (186,744) (176,691) (217,812)

Total Cost (874,271) (284,913) (995,926)

Net Surplus/(Deficit)

IANZ (85,753) 626,038 (31,354)

Telarc 102,255 75,725 92,749

Total Surplus/(Deficit) 16,502 701,763 61,395

3  Refer to note 2 Net Revenue and Cost analysis. Consolidated training results include margins earned by Telarc.
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7.3.1  PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The NZQC performance to the end of June 2018 was 
short on budget for revenue and contribution. After 
last year’s revamping of the ISO9001 and ISO14001, 
revenue from these programmes began to diminish 
through early 2018. Some of this shortfall has been 
retrieved with the revision of ISO17025. A series of 
upgrade seminars have been held, together with  
in-house courses at the largest testing laboratories.

The delivery of training courses to the Singapore 
Accreditation Council ceased in January. High 
workloads for our key assessors meant that NZQC 
could no longer deliver some of the international 
courses. 

The new international Occupational Health and Safety 
standard, ISO 45001:2018 was launched in March and 
NZQC has run 3 courses on its implementation. A 
shorter version of this course will debut in late August.

NZQC is evaluating other certification schemes for 
suitability as training options.

Specific Target 2018  

ACTUAL

2018  

TARGET

Overall Person days of Training delivered 1,515 1,700

NZQC Attendee Analysis 
by Course Type
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7.4  International Recognition

IANZ: IANZ accreditation is recognised by authorities in 104 countries as equivalent to their own accreditation. 
This mutual recognition is a major factor in trade facilitation accreditation, affecting more than $20 billion in  
New Zealand exports.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE4 

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Revenue 520,325 487,342 483,868

Less Cost (355,593) (182,000) (373,008)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 164,731 305,342 110,860

4 Refer to note 2 Net Revenue and Cost analysis

Specific Target 2018  

ACTUAL

2018  

TARGET

IANZ accreditation recognised by national accreditation authorities in over 100 countries 104 100

7.4.1  PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

7.4.1.1  INTERNATIONAL INVOLVEMENT

Exports are essential to the New Zealand economy, 
particularly agricultural (e.g. meat and dairy) 
products, as well as manufactured goods, including 
steel and aluminium. The growing global demand 
for testing in accredited laboratories has seen IANZ 
play a key role in facilitating international trade. 
Affiliation with MRA partners assists acceptance of 
New Zealand products in overseas markets without 
additional testing or inspection. The recognition 
of the ILAC MRA by overseas regulators gives 
manufacturers and suppliers accreditation bodies 
in 101 economies, including all our major trading 
partners, are signatories to such arrangements. In 
addition, another five accreditation authorities in the 
European Union recognise IANZ designation under 
the auspices of the New Zealand – European Union 
Government to Government MRA.

IANZ continues its core role as the New Zealand 
member of the Asia Pacific Laboratory Accreditation 
Cooperation (APLAC) and the International 
Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC).

Work continues to progress with IANZ’s involvement, 
including membership of ISO Working Groups, 
in a number of new standards, including the core 
accreditation body standard (ISO/IEC 17011), the 
core laboratory standard (ISO/IEC 17025) and the 
Reference Material Producer standard (ISO 17034), 
all of which were published during the course of this 
year.

The Chair and CEO continue to meet with MBIE staff 
to discuss how MBIE and IANZ can work together 
to enhance the use of accreditation and conformity 
assessment in regulatory systems in New Zealand and 
International trade. Discussions have also included 
the role of accreditation in Free Trade Agreements.
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7.4.1.2  TRADE NEGOTIATIONS

IANZ continues to help regulators with free trade 
discussions. These have included RCEP (India 
and China), and the Gulf Co-operation Council. A 
comprehensive negotiation with the European Union, 
and secondly with the UK, is also proposed. 

7.4.1.3  TRANS-TASMAN MRA 

IANZ continues to work co-operatively with its 
counterpart Australian organisation, NATA, to 
provide seamless recognition of laboratory results 
and inspection reports for regulators on both 
sides of the Tasman. Annual benchmarking assists 
in identifying improvement opportunities. Both 
organisations ensure accreditation practices provide 
similar outcomes, including the use of common 
technical experts where necessary. 

7.5  Promoting Conformity 
Assessment

7.5.1  PUBLICATIONS

Updates to IANZ criteria in technical and information 
publications can be viewed at www.ianz.govt.nz and 
copies are sent to the Legal Deposit Office at the 
National Library of New Zealand. IANZ continues 
with its promotional campaign, with a number of 
mainstream media and specialist trade publications 
publishing articles on IANZ accreditation. IANZ 
also produces several editorial papers for a number  
of publications.

7.5.2  WEBSITES

The Council maintains three websites 
ianz.govt.nz; telarc.co.nz; nzqc.co.nz

Each details Council activities, including full product 
and assessment process information, the register of 
accredited organisations and how to become IANZ 
accredited or Telarc certified. News articles of interest 
and contact details are also provided.

7.6  Organisational Health and 
Capabilities

7.6.1  QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

Inherent in the operating standards adhered to by 
IANZ and Telarc is the implementation of sound 
quality management practices based on ISO 9001. 
To ensure full compliance is maintained, six-monthly 
internal assessments are conducted. Any corrective 
actions are addressed and remedied prior to the  
next assessment.
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8.  Valued Employer

IANZ’s most important resource is its people, and 
its network of volunteer technical experts. IANZ has 
set out its people and organisational development 
objectives as follows:

 — Achieving a low turnover of staff, and by 
the number of new accreditation solutions 
developed

 — Increasing the number of staff cross-skilled 
across programmes

 — Improving staff engagement

 — Increasing client satisfaction

8.1  Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees and external 
technical expert assessors, is of paramount 
importance to the Council. Comprehensive policies 
have been implemented to ensure workplace safety. 
These are annually reviewed by the Council, and 
audited externally to show compliance with IOD/
MBIE guidelines for a safe workplace. Updates on 
Health and Safety are provided at every Council 
meeting. A new Health and Safety Management 
system manual has been commissioned which is 
aligned with the requirements of the Health and 
Safety at Work Act 2015 (encompassing all applicable 
regulations) and the AS/NZ 4801 standard. This has 
been signed off by the Health and Safety Committee 
and the Council. Health and Safety is an agenda item 
at all communication forums in the organisation and 
staff are actively engaged in aspects of health and 
safety during their everyday activities.

The Telarc Board and its employees also regard 
health and safety to be of vital importance. The 
Board carried out an extensive review of H&S within 
Telarc utilising the IOD H&S guidelines diagnostic 
tool. Extensive reviews were conducted across the 
key dimensions of Policy, Planning Delivery and 

Monitoring. All findings were correlated back to 
existing practices and documentation and updated 
when found to be falling short of the requirements of 
the H&S at Work Act 2015. 

The Telarc H&S Committee has been very active 
supporting the Boards findings and amendments 
as well as taking a proactive role in the support of 
everyone’s wellbeing in the office, at home and on 
client’s sites. 

8.2  Employer of Choice

Following sound human resource management 
principles and using the core values embedded in 
the Baldrige Criteria to monitor progress, the Council 
aims to be an Employer of Choice. 

After a number of sessions for all staff, facilitated by 
an external consultant, the following organisational 
purpose and values were agreed and are being 
embedded into all IANZ policy and practice. This 
includes staff recruitment, appraisals and ‘behaviours’:

ORGANISATIONAL PROMISE

 Protecting the Health and Wealth of New Zealand

VALUES 

Raising the Bar: Aspire to continual improvement.

Safe: Trusted, “safe pair of hands,” internally – 
psychologically safe working environment for all staff.

Value: Desire to add value to assessments and work 
with clients.

Passion: Dedication, “going the extra mile.”

The IANZ staff awards programme, aligned to these 
values, was inaugurated in June 2017 and four staff 
were awarded the IANZ Really Special Valued Person 
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Award during the course of the year.

A low staff turnover rate of 8% was achieved for the 
year. A full review of all operational activities is held 
quarterly with staff, led by the CEO.

It is Telarc’s goal to create a sustainable business 
supported and run by professional, ethical and 
relevant people. To achieve this, Telarc is committed 
to building up a strong employee value proposition 
on an ongoing basis to retain and grow its position as 
an Employer of Choice.

8.3  Equal Employment 
Opportunities

Sound employment policies are in place to ensure all 
staff and job applicants are treated equally, regardless 
of status. Firm guidelines in the recruitment process 
highlight the need to appoint new staff on ability 
and merit. IANZ does not discriminate on the basis 
of race, gender, orientation or other grounds. The 
Council ensures gender neutrality in its appointment 
processes. Full job descriptions are provided for 
each position with key performance indicators set 
each year in conjunction with managers. Formal 
performance reviews are conducted annually, with 
informal assessments at six months. 

8.4  Staffing

Recruiting suitably qualified people for training as 
IANZ assessors remains challenging. The movement 
of a few staff, and scope expansion in some 
programmes, has necessitated the need to assess 
ongoing needs. 

Telarc continues to source qualified keen people to 
work on growing its business in a positive and ethical 
manner. Telarc is receiving CV’s from well qualified 
people and has committed to recruit 3 additional 
auditors with staggered start dates over the year. This 
has been achieved via the CV’s received. 

8.5  Good Employer Policies and 
Practices

Good employer practice is promulgated through 
formal policies covering:

 — Health and safety

 — Environmental

 — Staffing

 — Training and development

 — Induction

Good employment practices are explained further in 
the Staff Manual and individual employment contracts, 
which clearly set out the code of practice for personal 
grievances if staff feel they are disadvantaged in their 
employment, discriminated against, bullied in any 
way, or sexually or racially harassed in the workplace. 
Details have been discussed individually with all 
staff. Workplaces are designed to accommodate 
people with physical differences and regular 
building emergency evacuation drills allow for the 
management of such persons in emergencies.

Workplace pressure is closely monitored, with 
additional counselling support for staff as required. 
Workplace flexibility is also paramount, including 
the taking of leave, flexible hours and autonomy in 
undertaking assessments.

Over the past 12 months:

Gender balance has further improved with women 
comprising 58% (2017; 51%) of total Council staff. 
Currently, 43% (2017; 30%) of the management 
team are women. This balance is benchmarked and 
compares favourably against other agencies.

All staff continue to be paid on merit and ability, 
without bias.

No employee requested working hours outside the 
norm.

No grievances or cases of discrimination were 
reported.
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The Council’s proactive Health and Safety Policy 
is designed to ensure the ongoing safety of all 
employees. No serious harm incidents occurred during 
the year ended 30 June 2018 (also nil in 2017). Staff 
are actively engaged in the reporting of all incidents 
including near misses which are accompanied by a 
robust process of investigation before being closed 
out. A number of health and safety initiatives were 
undertaken at the Council’s offices, and proactive 
hazard identification continues to be assessed before 
entering client premises.

8.6  Performance Appraisals

All Council staff have received an annual performance 
appraisals to evaluate individual achievement against 
their agreed key performance indicators and to 
identify opportunities for personal development  
and training.

All Telarc staff underwent an annual review, with 90% 
being conducted by the CE directly with staff.

8.7  Staff Training

Specific development plans have been developed 
with each individual employee. These form part of 
the annual appraisal with the CEO. These are actively 
managed via the Technical leads for the Food and 
Management system part of the business.

In addition Telarc holds 2 conferences a year at 
which specific topics are identified for external 
experts to attend and present to/facilitate, the wider  
employee group.

Throughout the year Telarc will train/educate 
members of the team in specific standard or 
regulatory changes. A good example during the 
course of the last financial year was the introduction 
of ISO45001 and the change in HSNO and  
Asbestos regulations.

8.8  Technical experts

IANZ uses approximately 2,000 technical experts 
on a voluntary basis to support the accreditation 
assessments of clients. Their efforts are critical to 
the operation of IANZ. During these assessments, 
the volunteers are part of the IANZ workforce, 
complying with Health and Safety policies, covered 
by IANZ insurance and working with IANZ staff as full  
team members.
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8.9  Human Resource Statistics

As at 30 June 2018 

8.9.1  GENDER

IANZ – AGE CONSOLIDATED – AGETELARC – AGE

IANZ – GENDER TELARC – GENDER CONSOLIDATED – GENDER

58% FEMALE42% MALE

IANZ – ETHNICITY CONSOLIDATED – ETHNICITYTELARC – ETHNICITY

56% MALE 44% FEMALE 48% MALE 52% FEMALE

Other
15%

Indian
8%

South African
2%

Pacific Island
4%

Maori
2%

European
4%

NZ European
66%

Other
8%

Indian
3%

South African
3%

Pacific Island
3%

Maori
0%

European
33%

NZ European
52%

Other
11%

Indian
6%

South African
2%

Pacific Island
3%

Maori
1%

European
17%

NZ European
60%

60+
43%

50 - 59
13%

40 - 49
13%

30 - 39
8%

Under 30
23%, 3

60+
30%

50 - 59
48%

40 - 49
8%

30 - 39
10%

Under 30
5%

60+
26%

50 - 59
45%

40 - 49
10%

30 - 39
11%

Under 30
7%

8.9.2  ETHNICITY/NATIONALITY

IANZ – AGE CONSOLIDATED – AGETELARC – AGE

IANZ – GENDER TELARC – GENDER CONSOLIDATED – GENDER

58% FEMALE42% MALE

IANZ – ETHNICITY CONSOLIDATED – ETHNICITYTELARC – ETHNICITY

56% MALE 44% FEMALE 48% MALE 52% FEMALE

Other
15%

Indian
8%

South African
2%

Pacific Island
4%

Maori
2%

European
4%

NZ European
66%

Other
8%

Indian
3%

South African
3%

Pacific Island
3%

Maori
0%

European
33%

NZ European
52%

Other
11%

Indian
6%

South African
2%

Pacific Island
3%

Maori
1%

European
17%

NZ European
60%

60+
43%

50 - 59
13%

40 - 49
13%

30 - 39
8%

Under 30
23%, 3

60+
30%

50 - 59
48%

40 - 49
8%

30 - 39
10%

Under 30
5%

60+
26%

50 - 59
45%

40 - 49
10%

30 - 39
11%

Under 30
7%

8.9.3  AGE

IANZ – AGE CONSOLIDATED – AGETELARC – AGE

IANZ – GENDER TELARC – GENDER CONSOLIDATED – GENDER

58% FEMALE42% MALE

IANZ – ETHNICITY CONSOLIDATED – ETHNICITYTELARC – ETHNICITY

56% MALE 44% FEMALE 48% MALE 52% FEMALE

Other
15%

Indian
8%

South African
2%

Pacific Island
4%

Maori
2%

European
4%

NZ European
66%

Other
8%

Indian
3%

South African
3%

Pacific Island
3%

Maori
0%

European
33%

NZ European
52%

Other
11%

Indian
6%

South African
2%

Pacific Island
3%

Maori
1%

European
17%

NZ European
60%

60+
43%

50 - 59
13%

40 - 49
13%

30 - 39
8%

Under 30
23%, 3

60+
30%

50 - 59
48%

40 - 49
8%

30 - 39
10%

Under 30
5%

60+
26%

50 - 59
45%

40 - 49
10%

30 - 39
11%

Under 30
7%
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9.  Statement of Responsibility

Paul Connell 
Chair of Council

20 September 2018

Dr Llewellyn Richards 
Chief Executive

20 September 2018

Fiona Paulin
Chief Financial Officer

20 September 2018

The Council and management of IANZ accepts responsibility for:

 — The preparation of the financial statements, statement of performance 
and the judgments made in them.

 — End-of-year performance information provided by IANZ under section 
19A of the Public Finance Act.

 — Establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls, designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 
financial reporting.

In the opinion of the Council and management of IANZ, the financial 
statements and statement of performance fairly reflect the financial position 
and operations of the Council for the year ended 30 June 2018.



42 ACCREDITATION COUNCIL 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

10.  Audit Report 
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11.  Statement of Accounting Policies

11.1  Reporting entity

The Accreditation Council (Council) has designated 
itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for financial 
reporting purposes. The Council trades under the 
name International Accreditation New Zealand 
(IANZ), and 100% owns its Crown Entity subsidiary, 
Telarc Limited (Telarc) which performs its certification 
function. IANZ is disclosed as the Parent in the 
financial statements with Telarc included in the  
consolidated figures. 

The financial statements for the Accreditation Council 
are for the year ended 30 June 2018 and were 
approved by the Council on 6th September 2018. 

11.2  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis, and the accounting policies have 
been applied consistently throughout the period.

11.3  Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Accreditation Council 
have been prepared in accordance with the Crown 
Entities Act 2004, which include the requirements to 
comply with generally accepted accounting practice 
in New Zealand (NZ GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Tier 2 PBE accounting standards 
because expenses are > $2m and ≤ 30m and the 
Council is not publicly accountable.

These financial statements comply with PBE 
Accounting Standards.

11.4  Presentation currency  
and rounding

The financial statements are presented in  
New Zealand dollars and all values are in dollars ($’s).

11.5  Basis of consolidation  
– purchase method

The consolidated financial statements include the 
parent Council and its subsidiary. The subsidiary 
is accounted for using the purchase method, 
which involves adding together corresponding 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses on a  
line-by-line basis.

All significant inter-entity transactions are eliminated 
on consolidation.

11.6  Budget figures

Budget figures (those approved by the Council at 
the start of the financial year) have been prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practice, consistent with the accounting policies 
adopted by the Council for the preparation of the 
financial statements.

11.7  Goods and services tax

All items in the financial statements are exclusive of 
GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, 
which are stated with GST included. Where GST is not 
recoverable as an input tax, it is recognised as part of 
the related asset or expense.

11.8  Taxation

The Council is exempt from income tax in accordance 
with section 39, Standards and Accreditation Act 2015. 
The Council’s Crown Entity subsidiary, Telarc Limited 
(Telarc) through its association with the Council, 
and functions it performs in relation to the Act, has 
been treated as exempt from income tax. However, 
the Council, has been informed that the IRD has 
recently changed its interpretation regarding the tax 
status of some Crown Entity subsidiaries, particularly 
subsidiaries of Autonomous and Independent Crown 
Entities and subsequently Telarc Limited will be liable 
for tax effective from 1st July, 2018. 
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11.9  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between the 
consideration paid and the identifiable assets acquired. 
A policy is in place whereby goodwill is assessed 
annually for impairment.

11.10  Leases

In leases where the lessor effectively retains 
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership, 
leased items are classified as operating leases. 
Payments under such leases are recognised as 
expenses in the periods in which incurred.

11.11  Financial instruments

The Council and group are party to financial 
instruments as part of normal operations, including 
bank accounts, short-term deposits, debtors and 
creditors. All financial instruments are recognised in 
the statement of financial position, with all associated 
revenues and expenses included in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

Apart from items covered by a separate accounting 
policy, all financial instruments are shown at their 
estimated fair value.

11.12  Changes in accounting policies

There has been a change in cash and cash equivalent 
classification between current and non-current during 
the year.

11.13  Critical accounting estimates 
and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, the Council 
has made estimates and assumptions for the future, 
which may differ from subsequent actual results. Such 
estimates are continually evaluated, based on historical 
experience and reasonable expectations. Estimates 
and assumptions with a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below.

Property, plant and equipment – useful lives and 
residual values:

At each balance date, the Council reviews the useful 
lives and residual values of its property, plant and 
equipment. Such assessments require consideration 
of a number of factors, such as the physical 
condition and expected period of use of the asset 
by the Council, as well as expected proceeds from 
its future sale. An incorrect estimate will impact on 
the depreciable amount of an asset, impacting in 
turn on the depreciation expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income and carrying amount of the 
asset in the statement of financial position.

The Council minimises such risk by:

 — physical inspection of assets;

 — asset replacement programmes;

 — review of second-hand market prices  
for similar assets; and

 — analysis of prior asset sales.

The Council has not made significant changes to 
past assumptions concerning useful lives and residual 
values. The carrying amounts of property, plant and 
equipment are disclosed in Note 6.

The Council assesses goodwill for impairment at the 
end of each reporting period and, if required, recognises 
an impairment loss at that date in accordance with 
PBE IPSAS 26 (Impairment of cash-generating assets). 
VNZ has been fully integrated into Telarc’s business. 
Telarc is the lowest Cash Generating Unit (CGU) within 
the Group for impairment testing purposes. Further, 
IANZ (the Parent) purchased the remaining 25% 
shareholding of Telarc Limited (subsidiary) during the 
year and the goodwill generated on the purchase has 
been allocated to Telarc Limited, being the lowest CGU 
within the Group for impairment testing purposes. 
The fair value of Telarc is greater than the value of its 
net assets including goodwill. The holding value of 
Telarc in IANZ’s balance sheet and the goodwill in the 
consolidated balance sheet is not impaired. 
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12.  Annual Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

 

NOTES

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

REVENUE

Funding from clients 17,345,563 16,784,977 16,490,488 8,373,723 8,415,878 7,823,825

Other revenue  85,390 80,345 74,062 758,190 70,000 515,914

Total revenue 2 17,430,954 16,865,322 16,564,550 9,131,913 8,485,878 8,339,739

EXPENDITURE   

Personnel costs 3 9,137,677 9,140,815 8,383,440 5,050,236 5,263,885 4,680,925

Depreciation and amortisation expense 6, 8 246,894 298,774 197,445 136,896 191,371 128,249

Finance costs 18 7,256 8,000 14,702  -  -  - 

Other expenses 1 6,541,880 6,253,320 6,588,004 3,049,043 2,821,209 2,992,111

Total expenditure 15,933,706 15,700,909 15,183,591 8,236,175 8,276,465 7,801,285

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE 
AND EXPENSE

 
 

1,497,248
 

1,164,413
 

1,380,959
 

895,738
 

209,413
 

538,454

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 1,497,248 925,663 1,057,833 895,738 209,413 538,454

Non-controlling interest  - 238,750 323,126  - - -

1,497,248 1,164,413 1,380,959 895,738 209,413 538,454

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in Note 13. The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

 

NOTES

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Balance at 1 July 8,653,281 8,779,625 7,422,322 4,913,706 5,549,655 4,375,252

Total comprehensive revenue and 
expense for the year

1,497,248 1,164,413 1,380,953 895,738 209,413 538,454

Less dividend declared  - (119,375) (150,000)  - - -

Less 25% Acquisition of Telarc Ltd (1,047,395)  -  -  -  -  -

Balance at 30 June 17 9,103,134 9,824,663 8,653,281 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

Equity attributable to owners 
of the parent

 
17

 
9,103,134

 
8,695,126

 
7,605,886

 
5,809,444

 
5,759,068

 
4,913,706

Brought forward 1,047,395 1,010,162 874,269 - - -

Share capital  -  - - - - -

Less dividend declared  - (119,375) (150,000) - - -

Share of surplus  - 238,750 323,126 - - -

Less 25% Acquisition of Telarc Ltd (1,047,395)  -  - - - -

Non-controlling interest 17 - 1,129,537 1,047,395 - - -

Total equity 17 9,103,134 9,824,663 8,653,281 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in Note 13. The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT

 

NOTES

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Equity 

Equity attributable to owners  
of the parent

Opening Balance 7,605,886 7,530,713 6,548,053 4,913,706 5,549,655 4,375,252

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 1,497,248 1,164,413 1,057,833 895,738 209,413 538,454

Accumulated surplus/ (deficit) 17 9,103,134 8,695,126 7,605,886 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

Non-controlling interest

Opening balance  1,047,395 1,010,162 874,269 - - -

Dividend paid  - (119,375) (150,000) - - -

Minority share of surplus  - 238,750 323,126 - - -

Less 25% Acquisition 
of Telarc Limited

(1,047,395) - - - - -

Accumulated surplus/ (deficit) 17 - 1,129,537 1,047,395 - - -

Total equity 17 9,103,134 9,824,663 8,653,281 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

Represented by:
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 15 4,935,866 2,041,359 6,161,636 2,815,918 1,487,337 4,083,659

Investment 5  - 5,000,000 -  - 3,500,000 -

Trade and other receivables 4 3,460,714 3,258,343 3,430,880 2,462,694 2,202,164 2,304,342

Other assets: prepayments  220,844 215,000 217,691 144,988 120,000 155,470

Total current assets  8,617,425 10,514,702 9,810,207 5,423,599 7,309,501 6,543,471

Non current assets

Investments 5 -  -  - 2,320,000 450,000 450,000

Property, plant and equipment 6 237,497 208,934 233,395 135,464 136,818 141,593

Goodwill 7 3,322,606 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - -

Intangible assets 8 259,976 318,495 287,368 62,307 115,274 109,238

Total non current assets  3,820,079 3,027,429 3,020,763 2,517,771 702,092 700,831

Total assets 12,437,504 13,542,131 12,830,970 7,941,370 8,011,593 7,244,302

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9 2,600,694 2,961,008 2,963,622 1,668,192 1,809,592 1,892,581

Borrowings 11  -  - 200,000 - -  - 

Dividend payable to  
non-controlling interest

 
12

 
 - 

 
119,375

 
150,000

 
-

 
-

 
 - 

Provision for employee entitlements 10 733,676 637,084 664,067 463,734 442,933 438,015

Total current liabilities 3,334,370 3,717,468 3,977,689 2,131,926 2,252,525 2,330,596

Non current liabilities

Borrowings 11 - - 200,000 - - -

Total non current liabilities - - 200,000 - - -

Total liabilities 3,334,370 3,717,468 4,177,689 2,131,926 2,252,525 2,330,596

NET ASSETS 9,103,134 9,824,663 8,653,281 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in Note 13. The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT

 

NOTES

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Revenues from services provided 17,246,893 16,489,663 16,074,089 8,511,851 8,191,949 7,448,580

Interest received 69,253 80,345 103,871 46,600 70,000 92,254

Dividends received  - -  - 450,000 405,768 300,000

17,316,146 16,570,008 16,177,959 9,008,452 8,667,717 7,840,833

Cash was applied to:

Payments to employees 9,021,330 8,874,333 8,173,872 5,016,662 5,134,705 4,617,287

Payments to suppliers 6,855,646 6,483,255 5,591,464 3,304,022 2,997,226 1,995,422

Interest paid 7,295  8,000 14,702  -  -  - 

Net goods and services tax 21,769 (41,583) (9,237) 5,028 (45,146) (44,817)

15,906,039 15,324,005 13,770,802 8,325,711 8,086,785 6,567,892

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities  1,410,107 1,246,003 2,407,157 682,741 580,932 1,272,941

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Proceeds from sale of property, 
plant & equipment

 
33,913

 
22,001

 
10,378

 
15,652

 
11,999

 
10,378

(Acquisition)/Proceeds of investment - (650,000) 2,200,000 - (150,000) 1,900,000

33,913 (627,999) 2,210,378 15,652 (138,001) 1,910,378

Cash was applied to:  

Purchase of property, plant & equipment 145,895 136,000 66,739 82,604 95,000 37,550

Purchase of intangible assets  
(computer software)

 
103,895

 
265,000

 
200,642

 
13,530

 
90,000

 
50,732

Acquisition of equity investment 
 

1,870,000
  
- 

  
- 

 
1,870,000

  
- 

  
- 

2,119,790 401,000 267,381 1,966,134 185,000 88,282

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities (2,085,877) (1,028,999) 1,942,997 (1,950,482) (323,001) 1,822,096

CASH FLOWS FROM 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend to non-controlling interest (150,000) (135,256) (100,000) - - -

Repayment of loan (400,000) (200,000)  - - - -

Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities (550,000) (335,256) (100,000) - - -

Net increase (decrease) in cash held (1,225,770) (118,252) 4,250,154 (1,267,741) 257,931 3,095,037

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of the year

6,161,636 2,159,611 1,911,482 4,083,659 1,229,407 988,622

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 
the End of the Year

 
15

 
4,935,866

 
2,041,359

 
6,161,636

 
2,815,918

 
1,487,338

 
4,083,659

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in Note 13. The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these 
financial statements.

Accreditation Council Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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13.  Notes to the 
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

ACCREDITATION COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2018
CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

NOTE 1: OTHER EXPENSES

The net surplus (deficit) is after charging for:

Fees to Audit New Zealand for audit  
of financial statement 

 
68,599

 
69,957

 
67,585

 
36,610

 
36,268

 
36,068

Marketing Costs 199,849 242,312 232,514 83,556 113,000 136,296

Staff expenses 292,418 232,124 325,324 138,479 75,438 125,004

International Expenses 241,128 225,234 302,044 127,303 128,000 197,001

Communication 167,626 176,136 171,657 83,717 80,123 76,984

Accommodation 717,532 758,765 728,043 515,221 565,963 532,804

Information Technology 248,800 241,961 238,453 126,617 134,049 106,107

Office Expenses 142,209 130,849 22,442 78,604 70,244 86,662

Assessment Expenses 3,474,180 3,346,471 3,376,693 1,610,401 1,483,695 1,397,004

Other Expenses 989,539 829,510 1,123,249 248,535 134,429 298,181

Total Other Expenses 6,541,880 6,253,320 6,588,004 3,049,043 2,821,209 2,992,111

Operating leases as lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be made under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

No later than one year 497,078 559,832 384,271 434,271

Later than one year but not later than five years 768,542 1,265,621 768,542 1,152,814

Later than five years  -  -  -  - 

Total non-cancellable operating leases 1,265,620 1,825,453 1,152,813 1,587,085

The Accreditation Council of New Zealand leases one Auckland office property. The lease was renewed in April 2015  
for a further term of six years.

Telarc Limited leased two office properties. The Auckland lease was renewed in July 2015 for a term of four years and is currently  
under review. The Tauranga Lease was renewed in October 2015 for a further term of three years expiring October 2018.

No restrictions are placed on the Accreditation Council or Telarc Limited by any of their existing agreements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 2: REVENUE

Accounting Policy

The Council’s revenue is regarded as exchange transactions and derived through the provision of outputs to the Crown, services to third 
parties and income from its investments. Such revenue is recognised when earned and reported in the relevant financial period.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

NET REVENUE/(COST)  

ANALYSIS

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

ACCREDITATION SERVICES

Revenue 7,251,625 7,194,276 6,593,197 7,251,625 7,194,276 6,593,197

Less Cost (7,193,056) (7,986,243) (6,650,163) (7,193,056) (7,986,243) (6,650,163)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 58,570 (791,967) (56,966) 58,570 (791,967) (56,966)

CERTIFICATION SERVICES

Revenue 8,682,841 8,116,684 8,356,102 - - -

Less Cost (7,510,785) (7,247,753) (7,164,494) - - -

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 1,172,056 868,931 1,191,607 - - -

TRAINING AND OTHER SERVICES

Revenue 890,772 986,676 1,057,321 601,773 734,260 746,760

Less Cost (874,271) (284,913) (995,926) (687,526) (108,222) (778,114)

Net Surplus /(Deficit) 16,502 701,763 61,395 (85,753) 626,038 (31,354)

INTERNATIONAL RECOGNITION SERVICES

Revenue 520,325 487,342 483,868 520,325 487,342 483,868

Less Cost (355,593) (182,000) (373,008) (355,593) (182,000) (373,008)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 164,731 305,342 110,860 164,731 305,342 (110,860)

OTHER REVENUE

Interest 77,663 80,345 64,350 54,835 70,000 56,925

Net gain on sale of property, plant, and 
equipment6 7,728 - 9,712 3,355  - 8,989

Earnout - DAA Group  - -  -  -  -  - 

Dividend  - -  - 700,000  - 450,000

Total 85,390 80,345 74,062 758,190 70,000 515,914

TOTAL REVENUE

Total Revenue 17,430,954 16,865,322 16,564,550 9,131,913 8,485,878 8,339,739

Less Total Cost (15,933,706) (15,700,909) (15,183,591) (8,236,175) (8,276,465) (7,801,285)

Total comprehensive revenue and expense 1,497,248 1,164,413 1,380,959 895,738 209,413 538,454

Telarc Limited paid the Parent $529,000 as a contribution towards overheads (2017, $529,000), which has been off-set against cost of 
service in the Parent accounts.
1. During the year, motor vehicles were disposed and subsequently replaced for the Parent and Telarc Limited. Gains were realised  
upon the disposals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 3: PERSONNEL COSTS EXCLUDING COUNCIL AND DIRECTORS’ FEES

Accounting Policy

Defined contribution schemes

Employer contributions to KiwiSaver are accounted for as defined contribution superannuation  
schemes and are expensed in the surplus or deficit as incurred.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Salaries and wages 8,853,540 8,979,502 8,185,367 4,909,568 5,196,150 4,598,406

Defined contribution plan employer contribution 216,642 195,700 186,579 114,949 102,121 101,401

Increase/ (decrease) in employee entitlements 67,495 (34,387) 11,494 25,719 (34,387) (18,882)

Total personnel costs 9,137,677 9,140,815 8,383,440 5,050,236 5,263,885 4,680,925

Personnel costs have increased on prior year mainly due to staff movement.

Employee Remuneration

During the year the number of Council and Group employees (other than members and directors)  
receiving remuneration and other benefits in excess of $100,000 were:

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

REMUNERATION

2018 

ACTUAL 

2017 

ACTUAL 

$310,000 - $320,000  -  1 

$300,000 - $310,000  -  - 

$290,000 - $300,000  1  - 

$280,000 - $290,000  -  - 

$270,000 - $280,000  -  - 

$260,000 - $270,000  -  - 

$250,000 - $260,000  1  - 

$240,000 - $250,000  -  1 

$230,000 - $240,000  -  - 

$220,000 - $230,000  -  - 

$210,000 - $220,000  -  - 

$200,000 - $210,000  -  - 

$190,000 - $200,000  1  1 

$180,000 - $190,000  -  1 

$170,000 - $180,000  -  - 

$160,000 - $170,000  1  1 

$150,000 - $160,000  -  - 

$140,000 - $150,000  1  - 

$130,000 - $140,000  4  4 

$120,000 - $130,000  6  7 

$110,000 - $120,000  11  6 

$100,000 - $110,000  13  12 

During the year ended 30 June 2018, nil employees (2017,1) received 
compensation and other benefits in relation to cessation (2017, $14,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 3:  PERSONNEL COSTS (CONTINUED)

Council and Board member remuneration

The total value of remuneration paid or payable to each Council and Board member during the 
year was: 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 2018 2017

Paul Connell, Chair - Accreditation Council 33,600 29,000

Lindsey Lawton, Chair - Audit and Risk Committee 18,656 15,950

John Boshier 16,960 14,500

Carolyn Harkess (from 1 Jun 2017) 16,960 1,413

Dr Graeme Benny ( from 1 Jun 2017) 16,960 1,413

Peter Steel (from 1 Jun 2017) 16,960 1,413

Richard Collin (From 1 Jun 2017) 16,960 1,413

Andrea Grant (Until 31 May 2017)  - 13,292

Howard Duff (Until 31 May 2017)  - 13,292

Elizabeth Hopkins (Until 31 Jul 2016)  - 1,208

Total council fees 137,056 92,895

TELARC LIMITED DIRECTORS 2018 2017

David Bone, Chairman 28,000 28,000

Paul Connell 14,000 14,000

Vikki Branagan (From 11 Feb 2016) 14,000 14,000

Tim Jacob (From 10 Feb 2017)  - 5,408

Geoff Richardson (Until 10 Feb 2017)  - 8,592

Total directors fees 56,000 70,000

TOTAL COUNCIL AND DIRECTORS FEES 193,056 162,895

The Council has effected Professional Indemnity and Directors & Officers Liability insurance 
cover for directors and employees.

No Board members received compensation or other benefits in relation to cessation (2017 $nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 4: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accounting Policy

Trade, WIP and other receivables are stated at their expected realisable value after providing for impairment, 
doubtful and uncollectable debts. WIP represents work performed for which clients have not been invoiced 
and is stated at expected realisable value.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Trade receivables 3,115,146 3,076,934 1,531,987 1,564,504

Less: provision for impairment (61,619) (32,894) (7,210) -

Net trade receivables 3,053,528 3,044,041 1,524,777 1,564,504

Other receivables

 Work in progress 407,187 386,839 237,917 289,838

 Dividends received  -  - 700,000 450,000

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 3,460,714 3,430,880 2,462,694 2,304,342

Total receivables comprises the sale of services (exchange transactions)

NOTE 5: INVESTMENTS

Accounting Policy

Short-term deposits are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, with any decreases recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Such deposits are classified as maturing less than 365 days from inception. The Investment in subsidiary  
is carried at the lower of cost or fair value. The investment is impaired if there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value  
of the investment below its cost.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

CURRENT PORTION

Term deposits  - 5,000,000 -  - 3,500,000 -

Total current portion  - 5,000,000 -  - 3,500,000 -

NON-CURRENT PORTION

Equity investments  -  -  - 2,320,000  450,000 450,000

Total non-current portion  - - - 2,320,000  450,000 450,000

TOTAL INVESTMENTS  - 5,000,000 - 2,320,000 3,950,000 450,000

There is no impairment provision for investments.

Equity Investments are measured at cost. The Council owns 100% (2017: 75%) of the share capital of Telarc Limited.  
The share capital investment of Telarc Limited is 600,000 Ordinary Shares. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accounting Policy

All are recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impaired losses.

Additions

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic  
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Work in progress is measured at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.

Disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset.  
Gains and losses on disposals are reported net in the surplus or deficit.

Subsequent Costs

The costs of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates that will write off the cost on a straight-line basis of the assets to the estimated 
residual value over their useful life. The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets used in the preparation  
of these statements are reviewed annually as follows:

Computer hardware 3-5 years 20%-33% straight line

Leasehold improvements 6 years (max) 16.67% straight line

Office furniture and equipment 5-10 years 10%-20% straight line

Motor vehicles 5 years 20% straight line

Parent 

Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

COST

LEASEHOLD 

IMPROVEMENTS 

$

FURNITURE 

AND OFFICE 

EQUIPMENT 

$

COMPUTER 

HARDWARE 

$

MOTOR 

VEHICLES 

$

TOTAL 

$

Balance as at 1 July 2016 445,503 365,807 235,094 135,000 1,181,404

Additions - 7,653 8,852 21,045 37,550

Disposals - - (40,392) (50,370) (90,762)

Balance at 30 June 2017 445,503 373,460 203,554 105,675 1,128,192

Balance as at 1 July 2017 445,503 373,460 203,554 105,675 1,128,192

Additions 13,895 14,413 23,679 30,617 82,604

Disposals - - - (29,514) (29,514)

Balance at 30 June 2018 459,398 387,873 227,232 106,778 1,181,282

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1 July 2016 435,489 329,145 148,942 76,698 990,274

Depreciation expense 5,004 12,659 39,497 19,549 76,709

Eliminate on disposal - - (40,392) (39,992) (80,384)

Balance at 30 June 2017 440,493 341,804 148,047 56,255 986,599

Balance as at 1 July 2017 440,493 341,804 148,047 56,255 986,599

Depreciation expense 6,039 11,990 43,795 14,611 76,435

Eliminate on disposal - - - (17,216) (17,216)

Balance at 30 June 2018 446,532 353,794 191,842 53,649 1,045,818

Carrying Amounts

At 30 June 2017 5,010 31,656 55,507 49,420 141,593

At 30 June 2018 12,866 34,079 35,390 53,129 135,464



57ACCREDITATION COUNCIL 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Consolidated

Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

COST

LEASEHOLD 

IMPROVEMENTS 

$

FURNITURE 

AND OFFICE 

EQUIPMENT 

$

COMPUTER 

HARDWARE 

$

MOTOR 

VEHICLES 

$

TOTAL 

$

Balance as at 1 July 2016 483,345 532,974 330,001 168,330 1,514,650

Additions 3,246 7,653 34,795 21,045 66,739

Disposals - - (60,653) (50,370) (111,023)

Balance at 30 June 2017 486,591 540,627 304,143 139,005 1,470,366

Balance as at 1 July 2017 486,591 540,627 304,143 139,005 1,470,366

Additions 13,895 30,514a 31,128 70,358 145,895

Disposals - - - (62,844) (62,844)

Balance at 30 June 2018 500,486 571,141 335,271 146,519 1,553,417

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 July 2016 469,961 469,272 199,144 87,808 1,226,182

Depreciation expense 5,284 16,291 63,643 26,216 111,434

Eliminate on disposal - - (60,653) (39,995) (100,648)

Balance at 30 June 2017 475,245 485,563 202,134 74,029 1,236,971

Balance as at 1 July 2017 475,245 485,563 202,134 74,029 1,236,971

Depreciation expense 6,546 15,711 71,112 22,238 115,607

Eliminate on disposal - - - (36,659) (36,659)

Balance at 30 June 2018 481,791 501,274 273,246 59,608 1,315,919

Carrying amounts

At 30 June 2017 11,346 55,064 102,009 64,976 233,395

At 30 June 2018 18,695 69,867 62,026 86,909 237,497

a - Includes $14,580 in WIP account under furniture refresh program
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 7: GOODWILL

Goodwill of $2,500,000 on the acquisition of Verification New Zealand (VNZ), is recognised as an asset 
and is separately identified within Telarc Limited (subsidiary company). Further Goodwill of $822,606 was 
generated during the year when the Parent acquired the remaining 25% shareholding of Telarc Limited 
(subsidiary company) from SAI Global. This is separately identified within the Parent. Goodwill is not 
amortised, but tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be 
impaired. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
revenue and expense and is not subsequently reversed.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Gross carrying amount

Opening balance 2,500,000 2,500,000  - -

Acquired through business combination 822,606  - - -

Closing balance 3,322,606 2,500,000 - -

Accumulated impairment

Opening balance - - - -

Impairment loss for the year - - - -

Closing balance - - - -

Goodwill carrying amount 3,322,606 2,500,000 - -

Impairment Testing for the Group

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to Telarc, the Group’s lowest level CGU (cash 
generating unit), which represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for 
internal management purposes. 

Recoverable Value

The recoverable value was based on a Value In Use (VIU) calculation using the Discounted Cash Flow  
(DCF) methodology. The recoverable value was in excess of the carrying value of the CGU and therefore  
no impairment has been recognised (2017:Nil). The following model shows movements in free cash flow 
which still produce an NPV equal to the enterprise value. This is as follows:

—  cash flows were projected for five years reflecting earnings increasing per the F2019 Business Plan  
from F2019 to F2021 and then 2% growth thereafter.

— cash flows were projected for five years assuming the budgeted cash flow for F2019 and a  
3% decline thereafter.

— cash flows were projected for five years assuming a 3% free cash flow growth from F2019.

— cash flows were projected for five years assuming a flat, free cash flow from F2019

Assumptions

A weighted average cost of capital of 9.81% (assuming a risk free rate of 2.81%; market risk premium rate  
of 7%; a beta rate of 1% and cost of debt rate of 4%) per annum, based on Telarc’s tax status as at F2018,  
has been applied to the cash flows.



59ACCREDITATION COUNCIL 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 8: INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Parent Accounting Policy

Computer software is recorded at historical cost.

Client lists purchased are recorded at historical cost.

Programme and course development costs:

Costs directly associated with the development of accreditation programmes and training courses are recognised  
as an intangible asset, to the extent that such costs are expected to be recovered. Development costs primarily 
consist of employee costs and, if directly attributable to the design of programmes and courses, are classified as  
an intangible asset if the following can all be demonstrated:

It is technically feasible to complete the course or programme for future use;

—  Management intends to complete the course or programme;

—  The course or programme is able to be used;

—   Adequate technical, financial and other resources are available to complete  
development and to use the course or programme; and

—  Expenditure attributable during development can be reliably measured.

Any cost failing to meet the above criteria is classified as an expense incurred in the surplus or deficit.  
Once recognised as an expense, development costs cannot be subsequently classified as an asset.

Any cost failing to meet the above criteria is classified as an expense incurred in the surplus or deficit.  
Once recognised as an expense, development costs cannot be subsequently classified as an asset

Amortsation

Computer software and capitalised course and programme development costs are amortised at rates that will write 
off the cost on a straight-line basis to the estimated residual value over their useful life. The useful lives and associated 
amortisation rates used in preparation of these statements are reviewed annually as follows:

Computer software: 3-5 years 20%-33% straight line

Capitalised course and programme development costs: 3-5 years 20%-33% straight line
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
For the year ended 30 June 2018

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

Cost PRODUCT 

DEVELOPMENT 

$

ACQUIRED 

COMPUTER 

SOFTWARE 

$

ACQUIRED 

CLIENT 

LISTS  

$

TOTAL $ PRODUCT 

DEVELOPMENT 

$ 

ACQUIRED 

COMPUTER 

SOFTWARE 

$

ACQUIRED 

CLIENT 

LISTS 

$

TOTAL 

$

Balance as at  
1 July 2016

37,829 1,911,218 369,435 2,318,482 37,829 1,018,385 - 1,056,214

Additions 17,325 183,317 - 200,642 17,325 33,407 - 50,732

Disposals - - - - - - - -

Balance at  
30 June 2017

55,154 2,094,535 369,435 2,519,124 55,154 1,051,792 - 1,106,946

Balance as at  
1 July 2017

55,154 2,094,535 369,435 2,519,124 55,154 1,051,792 - 1,106,946

Additions - 103,895 a - 103,895 - 13,530 - 13,530

Reclassification (17,325) 17,325 - - (17,325) 17,325 - -

Disposals - - - - - - - -

Balance at  
30 June 2018

37,829 2,215,755 369,435 2,623,019 37,829 1,082,647 - 1,120,476

Amortisation

Balance as at  
1 July 2016

26,519 1,749,791 369,435 2,145,745 26,519 919,649 - 946,168

Ammortisation 
expense

2,188 83,823 - 86,011 2,188 49,352 - 51,540

Eliminate on disposal - - - - - - - -

Balance at  
30 June 2017

28,707 1,833,614 369,435 2,231,756 28,707 969,001 - 997,708

Balance as at  
1 July 2017

28,707 1,833,614 369,435 2,231,756 28,707 969,001 - 997,708

Ammortisation 
expense

3,096 128,191 - 131,287 3,096 57,366 - 60,461

Eliminate on disposal - - - - - - - -

Balance at  
30 June 2018

31,803 1,961,805 369,435 2,363,043 31,803 1,026,367 - 1,058,169

Carrying amounts

At 30 June 2017 26,447 260,921 - 287,368 26,447 82,791 - 109,238

At 30 June 2018 6,026 253,950 - 259,976 6,026 56,280 - 62,307

a – Includes WIP on Stay in Front $17,985 and QLBS $33,000

Capital commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets are $56,000 (2017 $68,245)

NOTE 8: INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Client lists purchased are amortised over their expected useful lives.

While work is still in progress with regard to certain capitalised course and programme development costs, the useful life of completed 
projects will be established at project completion       

Movements for each class of intangible asset are as follows:
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NOTE 9: PAYABLES

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018  

ACTUAL $

2018  

BUDGET $

2017  

ACTUAL $

2018  

ACTUAL $

2018  

BUDGET $

2017  

ACTUAL $

PAYABLES UNDER EXCHANGE 
TRANSACTIONS

Trade payables 269,682 1,635,008 470,360 172,316 942,592 257,167

Other payables - - - - - -

Accrued expenses 572,526 - 613,127 331,528 - 417,103

Revenue in advance 1,314,265 1,326,000 1,336,510 921,297 867,000 876,093

Total payables under exchange transactions 2,156,472 2,961,008 2,419,997 1,425,141 1,809,592 1,550,363

PAYABLES UNDER NON-EXCHANGE 
TRANSACTIONS

Taxes payable (GST, PAYE, FBT) 444,222 - 543,625 243,051 - 342,218

Total payables under non-exchange transactions 444,222 - 543,625 243,051 - 342,218

Total Payables 2,600,694 2,961,008 2,963,622 1,668,192 1,809,592 1,892,581

Trade creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms. Therefore, the carrying 
value of trade creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Accounting Policy

Provision is made for the Council and group’s liability for annual leave and retirement leave, calculated on an actual entitlement basis at 
current rates of pay. 

Employees who have completed 20 years of continuous service may be granted once-only, long-service leave of four weeks. Provision  
has been made for any future liability, calculated on an actuarial basis.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Annual leave 681,170 601,034 629,051 424,117 406,883 410,402

Long service leave 52,506 36,050 35,016 39,617 36,050 27,613

Retirement leave - - - - - -

Total 733,676 637,084 664,067 463,734 442,933 438,015

The present value of long service leave obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis. Two key 
assumptions used in calculating this liability include the discount rate and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions  
will affect the carrying amount of the liability. 

Expected future payments are discounted using forward discount rates derived from the Treasury. The discount rates used have maturities 
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows. The salary inflation factor has been determined after considering historical 
salary inflation patterns and utilising actuarial rates as advised by the Treasury. Discount rates for year 1: 1.78% ; year 2: 1.9% and year 3 : 3.55% 
(2017 year 1: 1.97% ; year 2: 2.36% ; year 3: 3.92%) and an inflation factor of 3.1% (2017 3.1%) were used.

If the discount rate were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying amount of the long service leave 
liability would be an estimated $1,791 higher/lower.

If the salary inflation figure were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying amount of the long service 
leave liability would be an estimated $2,120 higher/lower. 

The non-current portion of long service leave is not considered significant to be disclosed separately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 11: BORROWINGS

Accounting Policy

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the financial year to which the charge relates.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Current portion

Secured loan  -  - 200,000  - - -

Non-current portion

Secured loan  -  - 200,000  - - -

Total  -  - 400,000 - - -

Secured loan 

The loan balance of $400,000 was fully repaid during 2018 and the security fully discharged.

Secured loan covenants

Telarc met the following financial covenant ratios for the secured loan during the year.

Interest cover ratio — Earnings for each financial quarter are not less than 2.5 times its funding costs for that quarter. This covenant will be 
tested on a twelve (12) month rolling basis.

Total leverage ratio — Total leverage ratio for each financial year to be maintained at less than 2.5 times.

The secured loan becomes repayable on demand in the event these covenants are breached or if interest and principal payments are not 
made when they fall due. Telarc Limited has complied with all covenants and loan repayment obligations during the financial year.

NOTE 12: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

The Accreditation Council is an Autonomous Crown Entity. All related party transactions have been entered into on an arm’s-length basis. 

Telarc Limited

The Council owns 100% of the share capital of Telarc Limited. 

The share capital investment of Telarc Limited is 600,000 Ordinary Shares.

The principal activity of Telarc Limited is the business of providing management system assessments and recognition services.

Telarc Limited balance date: 30 June.

SAI Global Limited 

The Council purchased SAI Global Limited’s 25% of the share capital of Telarc Limited on 30 August 2017, with effect from 1 July, 2017.

Dividend declared and payable to SAI Global Nil (2017 $150,000)

Audit services provided by SAI Global $72,518 (2017 $133,561)

Audit services provided to SAI Global Nil (2017 $200,508)

Balance of liability owing to SAI Global Nil (2017 $5,439)

Balance of liability owing to Telarc Limited $42,565 (2017 $31,726)
 

Accreditation Council and Telarc Limited

During the year, the total transactions charged by the Accreditation Council of New Zealand to Telarc Limited were $874,085; $529,000 
being overhead contribution fees with the balance for goods and services. Transactions charged to the Council were $77,194 (2017 
transactions charged by the Council were $928,014; $529,000 being overhead contribution fees with the balance for goods and services,  
and transactions charged to the Council for goods and services were $65,402). All transactions were undertaken on a total arms length basis. 
There are no other related party transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 13: MAJOR BUDGET VARIATIONS

Commentary is provided for variance to budget greater than $500k or 5%, or where relevant.

Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense:

IANZ’s (Parent) surplus of $196k (before dividend) for the year end was down on budget by $12k and above prior year by $106k. The shortfall 
was primarily due to NZQC (Quality College) not meeting its budgeted surplus by $17k. This was impart due to course mix. After last year’s 
revamping of the ISO9001 and ISO14001, revenue from these programmes began to diminish through early 2018. Some of this shortfall has 
been retrieved with the revision of ISO17025. A series of upgrade seminars have been held, together with in-house courses at the largest testing 
laboratories. Telarc exceed budgeted Revenue by $616k and Margin by $557k and exceeded budgeted surplus by $340k. Revenue growth was 
attributed the following programmes. 

— Environment portfolio grew 1.5%

— Quality portfolio grew 9.7%

— Health & Safety portfolio grew 17.8%

— Food portfolio grew 20.6%

— Other revenue portfolio declined by 1/3rd as the EWRB competency work was not renewed.

—  Net Consolidated Surplus exceeded budget for the F2018 year on the back of increased revenue  
and effective management of total operational costs (28.6%).

Statement of financial position variances:

Cash reserves were down on budget by $2,106k due primarily to the purchase of the remaining 25% shareholding inTelarc Limited (subsidiary).

Goodwill increased by $822k as a result of the purchase of the 25% shareholding of Telarc Limited.

NOTE 12: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

At year end Telarc Limited owed the Council: 

Current Account Advances Nil (2017 Nil)

Payables $79,414 (2017 $72,401)

Dividends $700,000 (2017 $450,000)

At year end Council owed Telarc Limited:

Current Account Advances Nil (2017 Nil)

Payables $42,565 (2017 $33,293)

Key Management Personnel Compensation

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Council and board members

Remuneration 193,056 162,895 137,056 92,895

Full time equivalent members 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3

Leadership team

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3,397,188 3,067,199 2,581,645 2,420,491

Other long-term benefits 22,298 12,086 22,298 12,086

Termination benefits - - - -

Total remuneration 3,419,486 3,079,285 2,603,943 2,432,577

Full time equivalent members 22.0 20.0 17.0 16.0

Total key management personnel remuneration 3,612,542 3,242,180 2,740,999 2,525,472

Total full time equivalent personnel 22.7 20.6 17.4 16.3

The full time equivalent for Council and Board members has been based on the frequency and length of Council 
and Board meetings and the estimated time for the Council and Board members to prepare for meetings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 14: POST BALANCE DATE EVENTS

There were no significant events after the balance date.

NOTE 15: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Accounting Policy

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held on call, and investments with original maturities of twelve months or less.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Cash on hand and at bank 2,618,460 4,216,316 1,277,551 2,956,159

Cash equivalents — short-term 
investments

2,317,406 1,945,321 1,538,367 1,127,500

Total cash and cash equivalents 4,935,866 6,161,636 2,815,918 4,083,659

NOTE 16: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

As at balance date there are no known contingent liabilities. (2017 Nil).
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NOTE 17: EQUITY

Accounting Policy

Equity is measured as the difference between total assets and total liabilities. Equity comprises general funds only.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2018 

BUDGET $

2017 

ACTUAL $

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 
PARENT

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

Balance at 1 July 7,605,886 7,530,713 6,548,053 4,913,706 5,549,655 4,375,252

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 1,497,248 1,164,413 1,057,833 895,738 209,413 538,454

Balance at 30 June 9,103,134 8,695,126 7,605,886 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

Balance at 1 July 1,047,395 1,010,162 874,269  -  -  - 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year  - 238,750 323,126  -  -  - 

Less 25% Acquisition of Telarc Ltd (1,047,395) - - - - -

Dividend declared  - (119,375) (150,000)  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June - 1,129,537 1,047,395  -  -  - 

TOTAL EQUITY 9,103,134 9,824,663 8,653,281 5,809,444 5,759,068 4,913,706

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTE 18: FINANCE COSTS

Accounting Policy

Borrowing costs are expensed in the financial year in which they are incurred. 

The loan balance of $400,000 was repaid to Westpac during the year.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

2018 

ACTUAL $

2017 

ACTUAL $

Interest on secured loan 7,256 14,702 - -
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1.  Function

The Council is required to act independently of 
Government in carrying out its functions and exercising 
its statutory powers. The specific functions of the 
Council, as provided in the Standards and Accreditation 
Act 2015, are:

a) To promote the development and maintenance of 
good practice in conformity assessment; and to 
establish and maintain an accreditation schemes 
for conformity assessment bodies engaged in 
testing and inspection activities; and

b) To develop and maintain international recognition 
and acceptance of the Council’s accreditation 
scheme; and to maintain appropriate international 
relationships consistent with the Council’s 
functions under this section; and

c) To act as New Zealand’s good laboratory practice 
compliance monitoring authority; and

d) If the Council chooses, to provide certification 
services; and

e) To perform any other functions as directed by 
the Minister in accordance with section 112 of the 
Crown Entities Act 2004.

The Council performs functions (a), (b) (c) and 
(e) operating as IANZ, with its subsidiary Telarc 
undertaking function (d).

2.  Council goals

a)  To cost-effectively provide authoritative, 
independent recognition of the competence of 
laboratories; inspection bodies and radiology 
practices across all sectors of industry where 
accreditation adds value;

b) To provide a cost-effective trade facilitation 
mechanism and enable access to international 
markets through acceptance of test reports 
from IANZ accredited organisations by overseas 
regulators, and to provide assurance of compliance 
for imported products;

c) To be New Zealand’s leading provider of assurance 
services, focusing on certification and compliance 
with standards; and

d) Maintain financial sustainability without Crown 
funding. 

3.  Operational standards

International standards are the cornerstone of the 
credibility of accreditations and certifications provided 
by IANZ and Telarc. Each organisation is regularly 
evaluated against specific standards for their type of 
operation. To operate as an accreditation authority, 
IANZ complies with the ISO/IEC 17011 (Conformity 
Assessment – General Requirements for Accreditation 
Bodies Accrediting Conformity Assessment Bodies 
standard).

To operate as a certification body, Telarc complies 
with ISO/IEC 17021 (Conformity Assessment – 
Requirements for Bodies Providing Audit and 
Certification of Management Systems). Annual 
assessments of Telarc against this standard are 
undertaken by the Trans-Tasman accreditation 
authority, JAS-ANZ. 

These external evaluations are combined with twice-
yearly management reviews and internal audits to 
provide Government, regulators and industry with 
confidence to adopt the outputs provided by the 
Council for their purposes.

Appendix 1
Council Function, Goals, and Operational Standards
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NEW ZEALAND QUALITY COLLEGE 
Short courses in all aspects of laboratory, inspection,  
quality and environmental management systems

ACCREDITATION COUNCIL

Crown Entity established under the Standards and Accreditation Act 2015.
Reports directly to Parliament through the Minister of Commerce and 

Consumer Affairs.

INTERNATIONAL ACCREDITATION NZ

The national accreditation authority unit of the Council

* Administration, Compliance, Finance, 
Information Technology, Marketing, 
Planning, Regulatory Affairs and Technical 
Development

SERVICES

Accreditation Applicable Criteria

Testing and Calibration  
Laboratories

ISO/IEC 17025

Medical Testing Laboratories ISO 15189

Radiology Services NZ Code of Radiology 
Management Practice

Inspection Bodies ISO/IEC 17020

Reference Material Producers ISO 17034

Building Consent 
Organisations

Building (Accreditation of 
Building Consent Authorities) 
Regulations 2006

Other recognitions

Registration of GLP 
Compliant Test Facilities

OECD Principles of Good 
Laboratory Practice

Designation of Conformity 
Assessment Bodies

Overseas regulatory 
requirements

SERVICES

Certification Applicable Criteria

Quality management ISO 9001 
Telarc Q-Base Code

Environmental management ISO 14001 
Enviromark 
FSC & PEFC

Occupational Health and 
Safety

AS/NZS 4801 
OHSAS 18001 
NZS 7901 
Safety Audit Standard for 
Adventure Activities 
OHS 45001

Integrated Management Telarc Q-Safe Code

Food Safety ISO 22000 
Telarc HACCP Criteria 
MPI Food Safety Programme 
WQA Assessments 
COSTCO 
SQF 
FSC 22000 
BRC 
WSMP (Wine) 
McDonalds

ACC Independent Audits Partnership Programme

2nd Party Audits Motor Rewind 
Telecare 
Dairy Water Accord

Transit Quality Standard TQS1 and TQS2

Employee Licence Electricity Regulations 
Plumbers, Gasfitters 
and Drainlayers Act and 
Regulations

Telarc Limited

The certification body wholly owned by the Council

Appendix 2
Council Structure

*  Telarc Limited receives corporate services 
from IANZ on a formal contractual basis
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PERSONNEL

The agency must be managed and staffed by 
personnel with appropriate technical qualifications, 
significant experience in inspection and testing, a 
thorough understanding of the relevant underlying 
scientific principles and sound operational and 
managerial skills. Evaluation of laboratory staff is a 
major component of the IANZ accreditation process.

ACCOMMODATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Many measurement and test procedures must be 
carried out under tightly controlled environmental 
conditions or in sterile or electromagnetically screened 
accommodation. Accreditation of an organisation is 
dependent upon the appropriate accommodation 
and environmental controls within the workplace.

INSPECTION, TEST AND MEASUREMENT 
PROCEDURES

Accreditation uses only validated inspection and test 
methods known to produce reliable results. An IANZ-
accredited organisation must not only implement 
rigorous quality control procedures to demonstrate 
the ongoing validity of its test and inspection 
methods, but also properly determine its uncertainties 
of measurement and limits of detection.

TEST EQUIPMENT

An accredited laboratory or inspection body must 
use test and measuring equipment as specified in its 
validated methods, which must be well-maintained 
and regularly calibrated. Such calibrations must, 
where appropriate, be traceable to the New Zealand 
national standards of measurement maintained by 
the Measurement Standards Laboratory under the 
authority of the Measurement Standards Act 1992.

REFERENCE STANDARDS AND MATERIALS

An accredited organisation must be equipped with 
an appropriate range of reference measurement 
standards and materials sufficient to demonstrate the 
accuracy of its tests and measurements. Such quality 
control materials must have demonstrated traceability 
to appropriate international standards.

RECORDS AND REPORTS

An accredited laboratory or inspection body must 
maintain complete records of its inspections and 
tests, and issue reports in formats in line with  
international standards.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

An accredited laboratory or inspection body must 
implement a quality management system that is 
essentially in compliance with the requirements of ISO 
9001: 2008.

An Accredited Organisation

Any organisation providing inspection, testing or 
measurement services may apply for accreditation 
under the Standards and Accreditation Act 2015. 
That organisation is then subjected to a searching 
assessment of its expertise, facilities, resources, 
operations, procedures and quality systems by a 
team of independent technical experts accompanied 
by an IANZ accreditation assessor. Selected for 
their prowess in specific fields, such experts are 
drawn from industry, academic institutions, research 
associations, government and private-sector bodies 
in both Australia and New Zealand.

Full compliance with the criteria results in formal 
accreditation by IANZ and the subsequent referencing, 
as appropriate, of Accredited Laboratory, Accredited 
Radiology Service, Accredited Inspection Body or 
Accredited Calibration Laboratory.

Accredited organisations are subject to annual 
assessments to ensure continued compliance. More 
frequent reassessments are carried out if necessary.

It should be noted accreditation does not constitute 
a blanket endorsement of all activities. Accreditation 
is granted only for specific types of work in which 
the organisation has demonstrated its expertise. 
Such work is defined in the organisation’s Scope of 
Accreditation as published on the IANZ website: 
www.ianz.govt.nz/directory. It also forms part of the 
certificate of accreditation and should be available 
from the relevant accredited organisations.

Accreditation

Accreditation requires organisations to meet exacting conditions of technical competence in seven areas of their 
operations, facilities and procedures.

Appendix 3
Accreditation and Certification Explained
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Summary of Operations

Laboratory Accreditation

IANZ accredits testing and calibration laboratories 
against the requirements of the international standard 
NZS ISO/IEC 17025:2005 (General requirements for 
the competence of testing and calibration laboratories) 
and in the case of diagnostic medical laboratories ISO 
15189 (Medical laboratories – Requirements for quality 
and competence). The laboratory accreditation 
programme is available to all such laboratories, and 
given their diversity, the programme is broken down 
into the following fields to recognise the different 
technologies and/or industry sectors.

CHEMICAL TESTING AND BIOLOGICAL 
TESTING LABORATORY ACCREDITATION

Accreditation may be granted for any testing of a 
chemical and/or biological nature on any sample 
type. There is a significant diversity of laboratory 
types accredited under these programmes, but the 
major areas include food, water and environmental 
chemistry and microbiology, metal alloys and ores, 
paint, coal and petroleum products, cement, soils and 
plants, air and gases, drugs of abuse, and veterinary 
and plant pathology.

A number of separately administered programmes 
have been established for chemical and biological 
testing laboratories in particular industry sectors to 
meet the needs of key stakeholders.

MPI Recognised Laboratory Programme 
(incorporating the Dairy Testing Laboratory 
Accreditation Programme and the MPI Laboratory 
Approval Scheme) – These programmes support the 
regulatory recognition of laboratories by MPI for testing 
in the dairy industry and meat, seafood, and honey 
industries respectively. Where testing is in support 
of MPI’s official assurances to overseas markets for 
these exports, the laboratories require regulatory 
approval, and IANZ accreditation is a prerequisite for 
that approval. Assessments of laboratories in these 
programmes include both ISO/IEC 17025 and specific 
MPI requirements for regulatory approval.

DRINKING WATER TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION PROGRAMME

Similar to MPI above, the MoH operates an approval 
programme of laboratories to test drinking water 
supplies in New Zealand, and a prerequisite to that 
approval is accreditation by IANZ. IANZ maintains the 
MoH register of approved laboratories. Assessments 
of laboratories in this programme include both ISO/

IEC 17025 and specific MoH requirements. For 
particularly small laboratories in remote locations, 
IANZ assesses them against a lower level standard 
than ISO/IEC 17025, and grants recognition 
(leading to MoH approval) but does not accredit  
these laboratories.

MEDICAL TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION

Laboratories providing diagnostic testing and 
pathology services to community and hospital 
patients and clinicians are accredited against ISO 
15189 (Medical laboratories – Requirements for quality 
and competence). Accreditation is required for all 
privately operated laboratories in order to receive 
payment for services from the local District Health 
Board. Essentially all general diagnostic testing and 
pathology services carried out in New Zealand are 
covered by IANZ accreditation.

MECHANICAL TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION

Engineering laboratories conducting tests of a 
mechanical nature seek accreditation under the 
IANZ Mechanical Testing Laboratory Accreditation 
programme and include a diverse scope of testing 
types. Major sectors covered by the programme 
include civil and roading materials, building products 
and materials, pressure valves, and non-destructive 
testing. Testing in an IANZ-accredited Mechanical 
Testing Laboratory is often a contractual requirement 
for contractors in the construction sector e.g. roading.

GAS CYLINDER TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION

This special programme is essentially a subset of 
the Mechanical Testing Laboratory Accreditation 
Programme and accredits gas cylinder test stations 
(including fuel, industrial and SCUBA cylinders) 
to meet the regulatory approval requirements of 
the Hazardous Substances (Compressed Gases) 
Regulations 2004.

WOOL TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION

New Zealand has two independent laboratories 
testing wool for grading purposes prior to auction 
against strict international standards. In accordance 
with international requirements, both laboratories are 
accredited by IANZ to ensure accurate grading, which 
ultimately determines the price paid for New Zealand 
wool at auction.



70 ACCREDITATION COUNCIL 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

APPLIED PHYSICS TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION

This specialised programme of testing involves the 
application of physics principles for performance 
testing of appliances such as: refrigerators and wood-
fired stoves, controlled environments testing, fire and 
fire systems, and optical properties. 

ELECTRICAL TESTING LABORATORY 
ACCREDITATION

This programme is also of a specialised nature and 
includes testing for electrical safety, electromagnetic 
compatibility and telecommunications testing. 

DESIGNATED CONFORMITY ASSESSMENT 
BODY PROGRAMME

In support of the New Zealand Government’s trade 
liberalisation agreements with many of its major 
trading partners, determination of conformity of 
traded goods in some sectors is established through 
Mutual Recognition Agreements with our trading 
partners. New Zealand uses accreditation to underpin 
these Agreements, which at this time is predominantly 
in the electrical and electronic goods sectors.

METROLOGY AND CALIBRATION 
LABORATORY ACCREDITATION

Calibration laboratories test and measure instruments 
used in industry and other accredited laboratories. 
Such calibration services underpin all critical 
measurements made, ensuring they are traceable to 
international standards of measurements and thereby 
comparable to all other similar measurement made 
throughout the world.

INSPECTION BODY ACCREDITATION

IANZ accredits inspection bodies against the 
requirements of the international standard ISO/IEC 
17020: 2012 (Conformity assessment – Requirements 
of the operation of various types of bodies performing 
inspection). The IANZ programme has a diverse range 
of inspection body types accredited, with the majority 
accredited to meet regulatory or other specifier 
requirements to conduct particular inspection types. 
Examples include engineering safety inspection to 
meet the requirements of the Health and Safety 
in Employment (Pressure Equipment, Cranes and 
Passenger Ropeways) Regulations 1999, fire safety 
systems to meet New Zealand Standards requirements, 
drinking water supplies risk management programmes 
to meet MoH requirements, imported used vehicle 
biosecurity inspection to meet New Zealand’s 
biosecurity and quarantine requirements, food safety 
management systems inspections to meet MPI 
requirements, imported vehicle safety inspections, 
and non-destructive testing and inspection. 

BUILDING CONSENT AUTHORITY 
ACCREDITATION

The Building Act 2004 requires all local body Councils 
are accredited by IANZ to process building consents, 
inspect building construction and issue compliance 
certificates associated with the consent. Building 
consent authorities are accredited in accordance 
with the Building (Accreditation of Building Consent 
Authorities) Regulations 2006.

RADIOLOGY SERVICE ACCREDITATION

Diagnostic radiology services in both the private and 
public (hospital) sectors may seek accreditation against 
the New Zealand Code of Radiology Management 
Practice to demonstrate their competence to provide 
particular radiology services such as X-ray, ultrasound, 
CT, MRI and the like. Purchasers of these services, such 
as the Accident Compensation Corporation (ACC), 
are increasingly requiring them to be accredited.

GOOD LABORATORY PRACTICE (GLP) 
COMPLIANCE MONITORING PROGRAMME

IANZ is the National GLP Compliance Monitoring 
Authority under the Organisation for Economic 
Cooperation and Development’s (OECD) programme 
for the Mutual Acceptance of Data. Test facilities 
conducting health and environmental safety studies 
intended for regulatory submission in support 
of the safety of regulated chemicals (such as 
pharmaceuticals, agricultural chemicals, veterinary 
medicines, industrial chemicals and the like) for 
the purposes of registration are inspected against 
the requirements of the OECD Principles of Good 
Laboratory Practice.

REFERENCE MATERIAL PRODUCER 
ACCREDITATION

Like the calibration of measuring instruments 
performed by IANZ-accredited calibration laboratories, 
producers of reference materials used to calibrate and 
control testing systems in testing laboratories may 
seek accreditation against the international standard 
ISO Guide 34:2009 (General requirements for the 
competence of reference material producers).

PROFICIENCY TESTING PROVIDER 
ACCREDITATION

One of the fundamental requirements for the 
demonstration of competence of testing and 
calibration laboratories is for them to participate 
in inter-laboratory comparisons to show they can 
achieve comparable results. Providers of proficiency 
testing services may seek accreditation from IANZ 
for this against the international assessment (General 
requirements for proficiency testing).
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Certification

Certification/registration occurs when an independent and competent third party certifies a product, service, 
system, process or material conforms to specific requirements.

The certification of quality and environmental 
management systems as conforming, respectively, to 
ISO 9000 and ISO 14001 standards, are the most well-
known examples. The quality management systems 
of more than 1,110,000 businesses in 180 countries 
are certified to comply with ISO 9001, with a further 
267,000 in 158 countries certified with environmental 
management systems complying with ISO 14001.

The terms certification and registration are used 
interchangeably in the ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 
contexts, depending on the country concerned. 
Likewise, bodies issuing ISO certificates can be 
referred to as certification bodies, registration bodies 
or registrars.

As the publisher of standards, the International 
Organisation for Standardisation (ISO) does not 
issue certificates of conformity to any standard. Such 
certificates are issued by more than 740 certification/
registration bodies worldwide, all independent of ISO 
and of the businesses they certify.

The world association of conformity assessment 
accreditation bodies, the International Accreditation 
Forum (IAF), requires members to comply with the 
international standard ISO/IEC 17021, designed to 
ensure the competence and independent status of 
each certification/registration body.

Quality and environmental management system 
certification assures users and customers of 
compliance with ISO 9001 or ISO 14001 standards, 
irrespective of the business and its work. To 
maintain compliance, standards are monitored by  
regular surveillance.

Restricted to a particular item produced by a 
particular business, product certification assures 
users and regulators of compliance with specified 
standard(s). Such certification may be limited to 
compliance with one or more standards, even though 
the product may be subject to many others.
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ACC Accident Compensation Corporation

APLAC  Asia Pacific Laboratory Accreditation 
Cooperation

AS Australian Standard

BCA Building Consent Authority

CBD Chem/Bio/Dairy Programme

CARs Corrective Action Requests

CCC China Compulsory Certification

CE European Conformity

CEA Crown Entities Act 2004

EA European Cooperation for Accreditation

EEO Equal Employment Opportunities

GLP Good Laboratory Practice

GMAS General Manager Accreditation Services

GST Goods and Services Tax

HACCP Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point

HSNO  Hazardous Substances and New 
Organisms

IAF International Accreditation Forum

IANZ International Accreditation New Zealand

IEC International Electro-Technical Commission

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

ILAC  International Laboratory Accreditation 
Cooperation

ISO  International Organisation for 
Standardisation

JAS-ANZ  Joint Accreditation System of Australia  

and New Zealand

MBIE  Ministry of Business, Innovation and 

Employment

MFAT Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade

MoH Ministry of Health

MoU Memorandum of Understanding 

MPI Ministry for Primary Industry

MRA Mutual Recognition Arrangement

NATA National Association of Testing Authorities

NSU National Screening Unit

NZBN New Zealand Business Number

NZQC New Zealand Quality College

NZS New Zealand Standard

OECD  Organisation for Economic Cooperation 

and Development

PBE Public Benefit Entity

QC Queen’s Counsel

SSC State Services Commission

TBT Technical Barriers to Trade

TPP Trans-Pacific Partnerships

TQS Transit New Zealand Quality Standard

WSMP Workplace Safety Management Practices

WTO World Trade Organisation

Appendix 4
Glossary of Acronyms
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Appendix 5
Directory

Head Offices

INTERNATIONAL ACCREDITATION  
NEW ZEALAND

Level 1, 626 Great South Rd, Ellerslie, Auckland 1051 
Private Bag 28908, Remuera, Auckland 1541  
New Zealand

Tel: 09 525 6655 Fax: 09 525 2266 
Email: info@ianz.govt.nz 
www.ianz.govt.nz

TELARC LIMITED

Level 3, 626 Great South Rd, Ellerslie, Auckland 1051 
Private Bag 28901, Remuera, Auckland 1541 
New Zealand

Tel: 09 525 0100 Fax: 09 525 1900  
Freephone: 0800 004 004 
Email: info@telarc.co.nz 
www.telarc.co.nz

NEW ZEALAND QUALITY COLLEGE

Level 3, 626 Great South Rd, Ellerslie, Auckland 1051 
Private Bag 28908, Remuera, Auckland 1541 
New Zealand

Tel: 09 525 6633 Fax: 09 525 2266  
Freephone: 0800 900 099 
Email: info@nzqc.co.nz 
www.nzqc.co.nz

Regional Offices

TELARC LIMITED

Tauranga 
Cnr Chadwick & Hynds Rds, Gate Pa, Tauranga 3112 
PO Box 9023, Tauranga 3142, New Zealand 
Tel: 07 571 2508 Fax: 07 571 2415

Wellington 
Plimmer Towers, Level 31, 2-6 Gilmer Terrace 
Wellington 6011, New Zealand

Christchurch 
Ministry of Awesome, 192 St Asaph Street 
Christchurch 8011, New Zealand

 

Auditor

AUDIT NEW ZEALAND

(On behalf of the Controller and Auditor-General)

280 Queen St, Auckland 1010, New Zealand

Bankers

ANZ

Great South Road, Greenlane,  
Auckland 1051 
New Zealand

WESTPAC NEW ZEALAND LIMITED

Takutai Square, Auckland Central 1010 
New Zealand

ASB BANK LIMITED

Great South Rd, Penrose,  
Auckland 1061,  
New Zealand

Solicitors

MEREDITH CONNELL

55 Shortland St, Auckland 1010 
New Zealand

Insurance Brokers and Consultants

AON HOPKINS PATON 



International Accreditation New Zealand

Accreditation Council
626 Great South Rd, Ellerslie, 1051
Private Bag 28908, Remuera
Auckland 1541
New Zealand

Tel: 64 9 525 6655
Fax: 64 9 525 2266
Email: info@ianz.govt.nz
ianz.govt.nz


